
 

 

Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting 
 

 

 

Workshop: Thursday, September 8 , 2021 – 1:00 p.m. 

Meeting: Thursday, September 8, 2021 – 3:00 p.m. 

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text



Roll Call & Establishment of a 
Quorum 



Adoption of Agenda 



 
 

 

Agenda 

 Assembly Meeting  

(packet available on website www.aleutianseast.org ) 

 

Date:   Thursday, September 9, 2021 

Time: Workshop: 1:00 p.m.  Meeting: 3:00 p.m. 

 

Location: By teleconference in each designated community location below: 

King Cove AEB office 

Nelson Lagoon Corp.  

False Pass-city office 

 Sand Point AEB office 

Akutan -city office  

Cold Bay City Office/ library 

Anchorage office – 3380 C St.

      
All communities will be provided with conference calling information for the designated location in your 

community. Public comments on agenda items will take place after the adoption of the agenda.  The meeting will 

also be broadcast on KSDP Public Radio. Additional public comments can be made at the end of the meeting. 

 

  

1. Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum. 

 

2. Adoption of the Agenda. 

 

3. Presentation. 

 Employee Handbook Presentation (workshop only) 

 

4. Public Comments on Agenda Items. 

 

5. Conflict of Interest.  

 

6. Minutes.  

 August 12, 2021 Assembly Meeting Minutes. 

 

7. Financial Reports.  

 Draft June Financial Report – for discussion only. 

 July Investment Report. 

 

8. Consent Agenda. 

 Resolution 22-11, appointing election judges for the October 5, 2021 Regular Election. 

 Resolution 22-12, appointing a canvass committee for the October 5, 2021 Regular Election. 

 Resolution 22-13, Assembly approving the Alaska State Land Survey 2017-46. 

 

9. Ordinances. 

 Introduction Ordinance 22-03, Amending Title 2, Chapters 2.04 and 2.16. Sections 2.04.020, 2.04.060 

and 2.16.010 of the Aleutians East Borough Code of Ordinances. 

 

10. Resolutions. 

http://www.aleutianseast.org/


 

 

 Resolution 22-14, Assembly authorizing the Mayor to Negotiate and Execute a Contract with 

DOWL to conduct construction administration/oversight and completion inspection/travel for 

the Cold Bay Terminal Expansion in an amount not to exceed $86,655. 

 Resolution 22-15, Assembly authorizing the appropriation of $250,000 from the Borough 

Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool to the Cold Bay Terminal Expansion Project. 
 

11. Old Business.  

 

12. New Business. 

 Strategic Plan – 2nd Quarterly Report Update. 

 

13. Reports and Updates.  

 

14. Assembly Comments. 

 

15. Public Comments.  

 

16. Next Meeting Date. 

 

17. Adjournment.  

 

 



 

 

Presentations 



Aleutians East Borough
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK WORK SESSION

SEPT EM BER  2 ,  2021

1



PROJECT PURPOSES

• Review Borough Employee Handbook 
to ensure compliance with 
requirements of law.

• Compare against those of other 
similarly situated boroughs to 
determine whether they are in line 
with prevailing trends.

• Propose modifications to address any 
perceived disparities, and to increase 
efficiency in administration.

• Submit proposed amendments for 
Assembly consideration.

• Stimulate open discussions between 
the Assembly, Borough administration, 
employees, and the public.

• Engage in collaborative process to 
navigate to policies that meet not only 
legal requirements, but also the needs 
of employees and the community.

• Establish a factual basis to assist the 
Assembly in determining which 
modifications are necessary.

• Determine which proposed 
modifications may be rejected.

2



PROJECT BACKGROUND

• Employee Handbook had not 
undergone a comprehensive review 
and update since 2009.

• As a result, several current provisions 
do not afford Borough employees 
specific protections mandated by law.

• Current grievance procedures create 
impartiality and separation of powers
issues.

• Some current provisions could prevent 
the orderly termination of employees 
engaging in gross misconduct.

• Adherence to outdated provisions 
could result in wrongful discharge 
actions, or other legal claims.

• Employee Handbook was initially 
reviewed by AML/JIA. It was then 
subsequently reviewed by the Borough 
Administrator, Assistant Administrator, 
and Borough Attorney.

3



Borough Personnel System

AEBC 7.10.020 expressly directs the Assembly to provide for personnel policies to direct the 
acts of Borough employees.

AEBC 7.10.030 authorizes the Assembly to amend the personnel system by resolution 
whenever it deems necessary.

THE BOROUGH CODE

4



BOROUGH ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

5



* Per Ordinance 19-08, any Finance Director hired after May 9, 2019, will report to the Mayor.

Aleutians East Borough (AEB)
Organizational Chart

Mayor Assembly 
Members

Borough 
Administrator

Contract Employee 
Terminal Janitor

Contract Employee 
Terminal Manager

Assistant Borough 
Administrator

Communications 
Director

* Finance 
Director

Clerk Maintenance 
Director

Natural Resources 
Director

Natural Resources 
Assistant Director

Accounting
Clerk

Administrative 
Assistant

Akutan Airport
Operations Assistant

6



CHAPTER ONE
GENERAL PROVISIONS

7



Minor grammatical adjustments and creation of more
accurate header.

Explain additional duties that are vested in the Mayor.

Reference codified authority for creation and 
implementation of personnel system.

Explain which Borough officials are subject to the
requirements of the Employee Handbook.

8



Establishes the official process for amending the 
Employee Handbook.

Explicitly authorizes the Mayor to serve as the 
ultimate decisionmaker regarding the Handbook’s 
interpretation.

Provides authority for the Mayor to relax the rules as 
deemed necessary to prevent injustice.

9



CHAPTER TWO
EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATIONS

10



Separated out into two subsections for organizational 
purposes.

Explanation of purpose for classification plan and 
description of how it will be managed.

Creation of “regular” employee classification, used to 
determine benefits eligibility and vesting of rights.

Classes of individuals who are not considered employees 
for the purposes of the Handbook.

11



These sections have been added to provide notice of 
which employees, due to the nature of their positions, 
are not included in the Borough’s classified service.

This distinction is important because Alaska law generally 
provides that members of a public employer’s classified 
service may only be terminated for cause and are entitled 
to a variety of pre-deprivation procedures.

12



Addition of descriptive headers.

13



CHAPTER THREE
RECRUITMENT AND HIRING

14



Addition of new section to adopt prevailing trend among 
municipal employers.

Revised to more clearly explain how job postings will be 
made by the Borough.

15



This has been added to provide proper notice to 
employees that they may be required to undergo pre-
employment drug screening (i.e., for positions that 
require a CDL).

This corrects the Handbook’s lack of any provision 
explaining when applicants and employees may be 
required to undergo background screening as a condition 
for employment or transfer to an alternate position.

This section was added to explain how the Mayor makes 
appointments and identifies specific classes of 
employment whose appointments and privileges may 
vary from members of the Borough’s classified service.

16



The current Handbook does not include a detailed 
explanation of the probationary period applicable to 
Borough employees. This section has been added to 
provide comprehensive direction to both employees and 
administrators regarding how the probationary period 
affects Borough employment.

This has been added to place employees and 
administrators on notice of the fact that there are special 
rules that govern the employment of minors in Alaska, 
and that those rules should be consulted prior to making 
any related hiring decision.

17



This proposes an expanded version of the Borough’s 
current anti-nepotism policy.  It generally prohibits 
individuals from supervising any immediate family 
member, provides a detailed definition of which 
individuals are considered family members, obligates 
individuals to disclose such relationships when they 
occur, and provides a process that will be followed when 
violations are found to occur.

18



19



CHAPTER FOUR
WAGE AND SALARY ADMINISTRATION

20



This introduction was inserted to provide employees with 
an overview of the Borough’s philosophy and practices 
with respect to the administration of employee wages.

This section explains how the Borough determines the 
salary grade and range for each position with the 
Borough, and the timing for requesting adjustments.

This section has been amended to make cost of living 
increases a discretionary act of the Borough Assembly, as 
opposed to automatic in nature.

21



Provides guidance for authorizing temporary pay 
increases when employees take on other duties.

New section implementing uniform policies regarding the 
keeping and submission of timesheets.

22



Establishes procedures governing pay advances.

Places employees on notice of the fact that the Borough 
will make deductions as required by law, or to facilitate 
the employee’s enrollment in benefits programs.

Creates a more equitable procedure for correcting errors 
in employee pay.

Establishes the Borough’s official workday and workweek.

Places employees on notice that, pursuant to Alaska law, 
Borough eligible employees are only entitled to overtime 
if they work more than 40 hours in one workweek.

23



24



25



26



CHAPTER FIVE
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS ADMINISTRATION

27



28



Reworked introduction that provides more accurate 
general overview of the purpose and accrual of annual 
vacation leave.

Simplified the rate of accrual schedule based upon length 
of Borough employment.

New requirement that employees must complete any 
applicable probationary period before using accrued 
vacation leave.

29



Inserted new requirement that employees use at least 5 
days of accrued vacation leave per year in the interest of 
ensuring that they have some meaningful opportunity for 
rest and relaxation.

This new provision authorizes employees to donate their 
unused vacation leave to other employees whose own 
leave has been exhausted, and who require time off to 
address emergency circumstances.

Creates a new maximum cash out per year and grants the 
Borough greater discretion as to whether to permit a 
cash out in a particular set of circumstances.

New introductory section explaining the Borough’s 
philosophy and general overview of the accrual and use 
of sick leave.

Simplified explanation of rate of accrual.

30



New policy that permits the use of sick leave in 
increments of one hour, as opposed to one half day.

Inserts more explicit discussion of requirement that 
employees notify employers of inability to work.

Requires employees to apply for Workers’ Compensation 
whenever available to maximize the value and availability 
of employee sick leave benefits.

Creates new procedures and rules to govern the donation 
of sick leave to the Borough Leave Bank.

Explains how use of paid leave affects the accrual of 
benefits and overtime.

31



32



Provides more comprehensive overview of Borough’s 
family medical leave policies.

33



34



35



Revised to account for the possibility that COBRA may be 
unavailable when the Borough had less than 20 
employees during the previous qualifying year.

Added to notify employees of the availability of Life 
Insurance and PERS participation.

36



New tuition reimbursement policy.

37



CHAPTER SIX
STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

38



This new introductory section provides employees with a 
more detailed understanding of what is expected from 
them as employees and makes it clear that the standards 
apply to both employees and volunteers.

The purpose of this new section is to create a general 
code of civility and respect among and between all 
Borough employees.

39



Requires employees to exercise reasonable care in the 
exercise of their duties, so that the Borough can better 
protect itself from civil liability as a result of employee 
negligence.

Corrects the current Handbook’s failure to explain the 
length of the two break periods.

40



Directs employees that they may not participate in any 
official Borough business in which the employee has any 
substantial financial interest.

New provisions make it clear that Employees are 
prohibited from:

• Performing work for other employers during 
their Borough work hours.

• Using Borough resources for any other 
employer.

41



Authorizes the Mayor and/or Borough Administrator to 
grant permission for employees to disclose confidential 
Borough information to third parties as necessary.

42



Gives a more expansive explanation regarding how and 
why the Borough monitors employee use of computers, 
Internet, and Borough-issued email accounts.

43



Vests employees with the responsibility to assist the 
Borough to maintain a healthy and safe workplace.

44



Inserts new wording that complies with the requirements 
of the Drug-Free Workplace Act.

45



Provides a more accurate definition for the terms 
“controlled substance” and “drug” for the purposes of 
enforcing the Borough’s workplace drug policy.

Updated to make clear that prescription drugs require a 
current prescription to be used on the job.

46



This section has been revised to ensure that it complies 
with the requirements of Alaska law pertaining to drug 
testing public employees.

47



48



Alaska law generally does not permit the Borough to 
prohibit the carrying of firearms in the workplace; 
therefore, this new policy requires that employees notify 
the Borough when they do.

This section is intended to permit departments to 
prescribe their own specific rules and procedures that 
govern employees.

49



50



CHAPTER SEVEN
DISCRIMINATION AND HARASSMENT

51



Amended to include mandatory EEO statement.

Updated to provide reference to Alaska’s counterpart to 
the Americans With Disabilities Act.

Replaced the current section with a less detailed 
statement with the intention of drafting an internal 
accommodations policy that may be amended by 
Borough administration as necessary as standards 
continue to develop.

52



This section has been completely reworked to provide 
explicit standards, definitions and requirements for both 
employees and management staff regarding the 
prevention, reporting and investigation of sexual 
harassment claims.

53



54



55



CHAPTER EIGHT
EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE

56



These proposed revisions include a comprehensive 
reworking of the General Statement so that it provides an 
overview of the Borough’s disciplinary philosophy.

This list of the grounds for employee discipline has also 
been updated to more accurately reflect the classes of 
prohibited behavior and to explain that additional actions 
that are not listed may also serve as grounds for 
discipline, depending upon the circumstances.

57



New language places employees on notice that, 
depending upon the nature of their misconduct, they 
may be subjected to discipline that does not follow the 
progressive disciplinary system described in this section.

This new section proposes four tiers of disciplinary 
action, which is more in line with the trend among Alaska 
municipalities.

58



The current procedures do not fully comply with the 
requirements of Alaska law governing public 
employment.  This new pre-deprivation section addresses 
each step of a process designed to avoid the potential for 
liability while engaging in employee discipline.

The deadlines for action in the current process are 
different from one another and difficult to keep track of 
from an administrative standpoint; therefore, we have 
proposed ones that are more uniform, and more 
weighted in favor of ensuring the employee’s rights are 
not violated.

Performance improvement plans are a vital component in 
a municipal employer’s disciplinary process.  This section 
provides an in-depth discussion regarding how they will 
be used by the Borough.

59



60



CHAPTER NINE
PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS AND PERSONNEL RECORDS

61



The existing Employee Handbook does not provide any 
information regarding how performance evaluations are 
used by the Borough. It also does not provide any 
direction regarding the frequency with which they are to 
be completed.

Because performance evaluations are such incredibly 
important tools—both for employee development and 
for enforcement, when necessary, we have proposed a 
more expansive section that provides clear direction to 
administrators and notifies personnel regarding how 
these evaluations affect Borough employment.

62



63



64



CHAPTER TEN
SEPARATIONS FROM BOROUGH EMPLOYMENT

65



66



67



 

 

Public Comment on  

Agenda Items 

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text



 

 

 

 

Conflict of Interests 

tanderson
Typewritten Text



Minutes 



 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Alvin D. Osterback called the Aleutians East Borough Assembly meeting to order by 
teleconference on August 12, 2021 at 3:00 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL   

 

Mayor Alvin D. Osterback  Present 

Chris Babcock  Absent-excused 

Carol Foster  Present 

Warren Wilson  Present 

Josephine Shangin  Present 

Paul Gronholdt  Present 

Brenda Wilson  Present 

Denise Mobeck  Present 

  

Advisory Members: 

Dailey Schaack, Cold Bay  Present 

Samantha McNeley, Nelson Lagoon  Absent 

Tom Hoblet, False Pass    Absent 

 

A quorum was present. 

 

Staff Present: 

Roxann Newman, Finance Director 

Jacki Brandell, Finance Assistant 

Tina Anderson, Clerk 

Anne Bailey, Administrator  

Mary Tesche, Assistant Administrator  

Ernie Weiss, Natural Resources Director 

Charlotte Levy, Assistant Natural Resources Director 

Glennora Dushkin, Administrative Assistant 

Laura Tanis, Communications Director 

Emil Mobeck, Maintenance Director 

 

Adoption of the Agenda: 

 MOTION 

 WARREN moved to adopt and second by CAROL. 

 

PAUL requested Resolutions 22-07 and 22-10 be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed 

under Resolutions. 

 

The agenda is approved as amended. 

 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 
August 12, 2021 

2 
 

PRESENTATIONS 

Pre-audit Presentation – BDO USA, LLP: 

George Barker with BDO reviewed the process and their responsibility, saying they offer only an 

opinion and reasonable assurance, for the FY2021 audit.  In addition, BDO will also do a federal and 

state audit and evaluate the use of COVID relief funds.  Year-end field work is scheduled for October 

and a week in November with an audit report in December. Presentation is in the packet.   

 

Community Roll Call and Public Comments on Agenda Items: 

Cold Bay resident and Gould Construction business owner, Clarence Gould, said in regards to certain 

properties in Cold Bay he asked the Assembly to remove from the table Ordinance 22-01 and 

Ordinance 22-02 to be discussed and moved forward, in which he has special interest in the sale of 

the building and transfer of State lease.   

 

Conflict of Interests:  

Mayor Osterback asked for any potential Conflict of Interests to discuss. There were no conflicts. 

 

Assembly Meeting recessed. 

 

************************************************************* 

PLATTING BOARD AGENDA  
 
Platting Board Resolution 22-01, the Aleutians East Borough Platting Board Approving Alaska State Land 

Survey (ASLS) 2017-46 and forwarding to the Assembly for final approval. 

MOTION 

BRENDA moved to approve Resolution 22-01 and second by DENISE. 

 

DISCUSSION 

Natural Resources Director Weiss said documents in packet show AEB land selections in the Sandy 

River area.  The resolution expresses Platting Board approval for ASLS 2017-46, with final approval at 

the next Assembly meeting.  Total AEB Municipal Land Entitlement is 7,633 acres.  AEB selected 

2,400 acres along the Sandy River.  In order to move to final conveyance and patent, land selections 

require a survey.  The AEB contracted with McClintock Land Associates to do the surveys that 

required a costly expense of a helicopter for the work.  We requested the State of Alaska, Dept. of 

Natural Resources, to review both ASLS 2017-46 and 2017-47.  DNR is not ready to move forward 

with ASLS 2017-47, at this time.  Recommend the Platting Board approve and move forward with 

ASLS 2017-46, and then to Assembly for final approval.  

 

PAUL asked if we would be obligated to recover survey costs if AEB decides to sell the land, in the 

future.  Weiss feels we should but does know the answer to that. 

 

ROLL CALL 

Yeas: Warren, Carol, Paul, Brenda, Denise. (no Josephine) Advisory: Dailey.  

Nay: None 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 
August 12, 2021 

3 
 

 
YEAS: 5 

NAYS: 0 

 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

ADJOURNED 

************************************************************* 

 

Minutes, July 8, 2021: 

MOTION 

BRENDA moved to approve the July 8, 2021 Assembly Meeting Minutes and second by DENISE. 

 

Hearing no more MOTION CARRIED. 

 

Financial Reports, June (not available): 

Administrator Bailey said June Financial is being finalized and will be presented at the next meeting.  

She said the raw fish tax total for end of FY21 is $4,015,000, which is higher than the estimated 

budget amount.   

 

June Investment Reports: 

In packet.   

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 Resolution 22-06, formally submitting a harbor facility grant application to the State of Alaska, 
DOT/PF in the amount of $4,125,000 for the Sand Pt. Harbor Float A Project. 

 

MOTION 

CAROL moved to approve the Consent Agenda and second by BRENDA. 

 

ROLL CALL 

Yeas: Brenda, (no Josephine), Denise, Carol, Paul, Warren.  Advisory: Dailey, 

Nay: None 

 
YEAS: 5 

NAYS: 0 

 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
ORDINANCES (tabled at the July 8, 2021 Assembly Meeting) 

 

TABLED on July 8. Requires a motion and a second to bring off the table. 

MOTION: Move to accept Ordinance 22-01, authorizing the assignment of certain real property leased 

by the Aleutians East Borough, and set for Public Hearing. 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 
August 12, 2021 

4 
 

 

Due to a lack of a motion to take from the table, the motion is lost.   

 

TABLED on July 8. Requires a motion and a second to bring off the table. 

MOTION: Move to accept Ordinance 22-02, authorizing the sale of a certain real property owned by 

Aleutians East Borough, and set for Public Hearing. 

 

Due to a lack of a motion to take from the table, the motion is lost.   

 

RESOLUTIONS 

 

Resolution 22-08, authorizing the mayor to negotiate and execute a contract agreement with 

Professional Growth Systems (PGS) for strategic planning services in the amount not to exceed $52,000. 

MOTION 

DENISE moved to approve Resolution 22-08 and second by CAROL. 

 

Administrator said if approved, PGS will develop the strategic plan, community engagement, provide 

follow-up and support. 

 

PAUL asked how the scope of work by PGS is effected, if we’re still in a lockdown mode, due to 

Covid.  Administrator Bailey said PGS will not charge for work not done and would then discuss 

options. 

 

ROLL CALL 

Yeas: Warren, Josephine, Carol, Brenda, Denise.  Advisory:  Dailey. 

Nay: Paul 

 

YEAS: 5 

NAYS: 1 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

Resolution 22-09, authorizing the Mayor to negotiate and execute a contract with F&W Construction to 

complete the Cold Bay terminal expansion project in an amount not to exceed $1,000,000 appropriate 

$200,000 in AMLIP funds to the project. 

MOTION 

DENISE moved to approve Resolution 22-09 and second by BRENDA. 

 

Administrator Bailey said this authorizes the Mayor to negotiate with F & W Construction for the 

project.  Administration has been directed to expand the terminal.  DOWL is in the process of 

completing the 65% design and assisted with contractor selection, hiring F&W through that process.  

Administration expects the project to be $1M.  F&W has been meeting with DOWL and requires $80,000 

to pre-order material to mobilize.  Need to get done by end of year.  $854,000 in CARES Act funds to be 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 
August 12, 2021 

5 
 

used and rest from general fund.  This also requests $200,000 from AMLIP for project management and 

engineering services, to complete the project. Funds not used will go back into AMLIP. 

 

PAUL asked if it can be completed by December 31, 2021.  Mayor Osterback said the CARES Act has a 

deadline date to use funds and can be completed. 

 

WARREN said the building needs some structural improvements necessary for earthquakes.  He asked if 

the columns improvements on the building was included.  Bailey said that is not part of this project. 

 

ROLL CALL 

Yeas: Brenda, Denise, Paul, Warren, Josephine, Carol.  Advisory:  Dailey. 

Nay: None 

 

YEAS: 6 

NAYS: 0 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

Resolution 22-07, thanking Alaska Airlines for providing temporary airline service to the AEB. 

MOTION 

 JOSEPHINE moved to approve Resolution 22-07 and second by BRENDA. 

 

Administrator said Resolution 22-07 thanks Alaska Airlines for providing service to AEB after Ravn 

bankrupted due to Covid. Alaska Airlines last flight is August 14th.   

 

PAUL said it has been good that we have had Alaska Airlines and most people wish they would stay 

so feels important to say that, for the record.  The airline we have now has start up issues and new 

airline starts up this fall, but feels it is important we recognize that Alaska Airlines is welcome to stay 

in the region.   

 

Mayor Osterback said everyone in the area appreciates the time and effort it took to accomplish this 

and for Alaska Airlines providing a very much needed service.  It also helped others beyond AEB.  We 

really appreciated them coming in and stepping up to fill the void. 

 

ROLL CALL 

Yeas: Carol, Warren, Paul, Josephine, Brenda, Denise.  Advisory:  Dailey. 

Nay: None 

 

YEAS: 6 

NAYS: 0 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 
August 12, 2021 

6 
 

Resolution 22-10, Assembly Urging the North Pacific Fishery Management Council to Postpone Action on 

the BSAI Pacific Cod Trawl Catcher Vessel (CV) Program Until In-Person Meetings of the Council Resume. 

MOTION 

PAUL moved to approve Resolution 22-10 and second by JOSEPHINE. 

 

Natural Resources Director Weiss said Resolution 22-10 urges NPFMC to postpone the BSAI Pacific 

Cod Trawl Catcher Vessel Program until in-person meetings resume.  This is a rationalization 

program the Council has been working on.  Both initial reviews were made in virtual settings that he 

and Levy attended, but no fishermen were attending, with no area to attend from.  SSC and Advisory 

will continue to meet virtually.  AEB has been advocating for strict side boards for the Western Gulf 

of Alaska and as much as possible for onshore processing. 

 

PAUL said fishermen need to be able to attend in-person and not clear as to what will be passed.  In-

person meetings will give fishermen an opportunity to comment and mingle with the Council.  He 

asked how long should the decision be postponed. Weiss said hard to predict, but December is the 

best time for our fishermen.  Council did pick some preliminary alternative and there is a good 

chance at getting the Council to delay for one meeting. 

 

ROLL CALL 

Yeas: Denise, Warren, Josephine, Brenda, Carol, Paul.  Advisory:  Dailey. 

Nay: None 

 

YEAS: 6 

NAYS: 0 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

OLD BUSINESS None 

 
NEW BUSINESS None 

 

REPORTS AND UPDATES 

 

Mayor’s Update: 

Mayor Osterback said Ravn and Alaska Airlines have partnered to allow Alaska Airlines mileage to be 

used for Ravn flights. 

 

Administrator’s Report in packet. Highlights below: 

CARES Act fund:   

Allocation overview in packet. 

 

Cold Bay Terminal Update:  

Met with Alaska Airlines on January 29th on closure procedures, so they will be shipping their things out 

on the last flight and other equipment later. 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 
August 12, 2021 

7 
 

 

FAA approval is done.  Waiting for Fire Marshal Permit. 

 

King Cove Road: 

Oral argument on land exchange was August 4.  Still working on the Special Use Permit, however, the 

state was able to fulfill some fieldwork and hoping to get authorization to do rest soon. 

 

Secretary of Interior Holland is scheduled to go out to King Cove in September. 

 

Akun Dock and Breakwater:  

Received fully executed Tribal Partnership Agreement on July 19.  Met with Corps of Engineers July 29 

and planning a meeting in Akutan to visit site. 

 

Power Cost Equalization Program:  

AEB participated in the litigation with other municipalities and power companies.  Holmes, Weddle & 

Barcott represented the group. Yesterday the superior court ruled in our favor.  Governor announced 

today that he will not appeal the decision. 

 

Legal cost to AEB was $10,000 but may get some back since others joined the lawsuit. 

 

Assistant Administrator Report in packet. Highlights below 

 

Clinic project: 

Discussions still ongoing.  Had an assessment on the present clinic to see what would need to be done to 

make it safe. 

 

Employee Handbook Revision:  

Working on the presentation.  Will be before the Assembly at the September meeting. 

 

Communications Director Report in packet.  Highlights below: 

Website design: 

Nine designers submitted proposals and scoring them on qualifications. Committee meets next week. 

 

Annual Report:  

Final changes and review being done and then will go out to the public. 

 

In the Loop and Fish News: 

Continues to go out regularly. 

 

Natural Resources Director Report in packet. Highlights below: 

Relief Fund:  

Pacific States Marine Fisheries Commission:  website update says fisheries relief funds will begin to get 

disbursed end of October.  Waiting for the approved grant from NOAA. The application process not 

available yet. 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 
August 12, 2021 

8 
 

 

Alaska Young Fishermen’s Summit: 

Doing raffle to sponsor participants to attend. 

 

Alaska Board of Fisheries: 

Board of Fish cycle moved forward a year.   

 

Assistant Natural Resources Director Report in packet. Highlights below: 

Electronic Monitoring Program:  

Met with NMFS and project team to discuss concerns for upcoming season and addressing some 

concerns brought to her by fishermen.  Working on data review protocols.  Waiting for a grant 

amendment approval from NFWF.   

 

Data Portal Project:  

Portal tracking along, working on the quarterly report.  Have been asked to participate on a panel at 

Pacific Marine Expo.   

 

Kelp Mariculture:  

Working on getting a team together for second research cruise, and collecting species.  Making sure we 

have safety protocol in place, due to Covid. 

 

Working with Alaska Sea Grant to get some seed lines started with the nursery in Kodiak.   

 

Located a fishermen in Sand Point who is interested in working the farm that will be overseen by Alaska 

Sea Grant. 

 

Cod Tagging Study: 

Observers have been sending tags in. Some tagged cod remained in Shumagin locations but other 

tagged cod have moved more than a 1000 km to Bristol Bay, northern Bering Sea and Russia.  Working 

on international relations to get tags back.  We now see that fish between the Gulf of Alaska and Bering 

Sea are connected through migration.   

 

This is not the only tagging study being done that are seeing similar results, and our study shows what 

we see around the Shumagin islands.   

 

Maintenance Director Report: 

False Pass School:  

Two of the three circulation pumps have been taken care of.  The rest of the materials needed arrived 

and will travel back to complete. 

 

King Cove Office:  

Rain prevented painting and eaves work on building.  Will try again in August. 

 

Akutan:  



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 
August 12, 2021 

9 
 

Projects completed. 

 

ASSEMBLY COMMENTS  

none 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  

No public comments 

 

NEXT MEETING DATE 

September 8, 2021. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

PAUL moved to adjourn. Hearing no more, the meeting adjourned at 4:41 p.m. 

 

 

             

Mayor Alvin D. Osterback    Tina Anderson, Clerk 

 

Date:      



Financial Report 

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text
.

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text



abailey
Text Box
DRAFT - FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY







































 

 

 

 

INVESTMENT REPORT 
 



Clients are encouraged to compare this report with the official statement from their custodian.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

Current
Month

Current
Quarter

Year to
Date

Latest 1
Year

Inception to
Date

Portfolio 0.91 0.91 11.15 23.84 6.88
Benchmark 0.92 0.92 10.52 23.26 6.71

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

P
er

ce
nt

 T
ot

al
 R

et
u

rn
 (

G
ro

ss
)

Performance is Annualized for Periods Greater than One Year

Current Account Benchmark:
Equity Blend

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

Fixed Income
30%

US Lg Cap
25%

US Md Cap
8%

US Sm Cap
3%

Int'l
13%

Emer Mkts
5%

Real Estate
11%

Diversified 
Alternatives

5%

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Client Relationship Manager: Blake Phillips, CFA®
Blake@apcm.net

Your Portfolio Manager: Brandy Niclai, CFA®

Contact Phone Number: 907/272 -7575

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Portfolio Value on 06-30-21 48,334,305

Contributions 0
Withdrawals -1,752,425
Change in Market Value 379,737
Interest 12,985
Dividends 42,985

Portfolio Value on 07-31-21 47,017,588

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
Account Statement - Period Ending July 31, 2021



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

PORTFOLIO SUMMARY AND TARGET
ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH

July 31, 2021

%
Asset Class & Target Market Value Assets Range

FIXED INCOME  (34%)
US Fixed Income  (19.0%) 6,767,863 14.4 10% to 30%

TIPS  (10.0%) 4,533,667 9.6 0% to 15%

Cash  (5.0%) 2,964,639 6.3 0% to 10%

Subtotal:  14,266,168 30.3

EQUITY  (51%)
US Large Cap  (24.0%) 11,547,527 24.6 18% to 30%

US Mid Cap  (7.0%) 3,553,429 7.6 2% to 12%

US Small Cap  (3.0%) 1,494,354 3.2 0% to 6%

Developed International Equity  (12.0%) 5,923,875 12.6 6% to 18%

Emerging Markets  (5.0%) 2,329,541 5.0 0% to 10%

Subtotal:  24,848,727 52.8

ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS  (15%)
Real Estate  (5.0%) 2,486,354 5.3 0% to 10%

Infrastructure  (5.0%) 2,873,213 6.1 0% to 10%

Commodities  (5.0%) 2,543,125 5.4 0% to 10%

Subtotal:  7,902,693 16.8

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 47,017,588 100



Clients are encouraged to compare this report with the official statement from their custodian.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

1.60

Current
Month

Current
Quarter

Year to
Date

Latest 1
Year

Inception
to Date

Portfolio 0.01 0.01 0.04 0.09 1.49
Benchmark 0.00 0.00 0.03 0.07 1.29

P
e

rc
e

nt
 T

o
ta

l R
e

tu
rn

 (
G

ro
ss

)

Performance is Annualized for Periods Greater than One Year

Current Account Benchmark:
FTSE 3-Month TBill

Fixed Income Portfolio Statistics

Average Quality: AAA   Yield to Maturity: 0.05%   Average Maturity: 0.34 Yrs

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Portfolio Value on 06-30-21 2,673,277

Contributions 0
Withdrawals -171
Change in Market Value -1,132
Interest 1,293
Dividends 0

Portfolio Value on 07-31-21 2,673,267 PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

Cash
71%

US Treas
29%

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Client Relationship Manager: Blake Phillips, CFA®
Blake@apcm.net

Your Portfolio Manager: Paul Hanson, CFA®

Contact Phone Number: 907/272 -7575

AEB OPERATING FUND
Account Statement - Period Ending July 31, 2021



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

AEB OPERATING FUND
July 31, 2021

Yield
Average Total Market Pct. Annual Accrued to

Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity

U.S. TREASURY 
365,000 US TREASURY NOTES 101.40 370,104 101.11 369,048 13.81 9,125 422 0.07

2.500% Due 01-15-22
150,000 US TREASURY NOTES 102.02 153,023 101.43 152,145 5.69 3,562 1,346 0.09

2.375% Due 03-15-22
250,000 US TREASURY NOTES 101.63 254,072 101.59 253,975 9.50 4,375 202 0.09

1.750% Due 07-15-22
Accrued Interest 1,969 0.07

777,200 777,137 29.07 1,969

TREASURY BILLS
300,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.97 299,922 100.00 299,994 11.22 NA 0 0.03

0.000% Due 08-26-21
300,000 TREASURY BILL 99.97 299,924 99.99 299,985 11.22 NA 0 0.04

0.000% Due 09-16-21
300,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.98 299,944 99.99 299,967 11.22 NA 0 0.05

0.000% Due 10-21-21
300,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.98 299,955 99.99 299,961 11.22 NA 0 0.05

0.000% Due 10-28-21
375,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.99 374,969 99.98 374,944 14.03 NA 0 0.05

0.000% Due 11-18-21
310,000 US TREASURY BILL 99.98 309,951 99.98 309,947 11.59 NA 0 0.05

0.000% Due 12-02-21

1,884,665 1,884,798 70.51 0

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
FEDERATED GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS 
INSTITUTI

11,332 11,332 0.42

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 2,673,197 2,673,267 100 17,062 1,969



Clients are encouraged to compare this report with the official statement from their custodian.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

1.60

Current
Month

Current
Quarter

Year to
Date

Latest 1
Year

Inception
to Date

Portfolio 0.01 0.01 0.05 0.09 1.47
Benchmark 0.00 0.00 0.03 0.07 1.23

P
e

rc
e

nt
 T

o
ta

l R
e

tu
rn

 (
G

ro
ss

)

Performance is Annualized for Periods Greater than One Year

Current Account Benchmark:
FTSE 3-Month TBill

Fixed Income Portfolio Statistics

Average Quality: AAA   Yield to Maturity: 0.06%   Average Maturity: 0.33 Yrs

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Portfolio Value on 06-30-21 2,610,788

Contributions 0
Withdrawals -461
Change in Market Value -1,873
Interest 2,038
Dividends 0

Portfolio Value on 07-31-21 2,610,493 PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

Cash
59%

US Treas
41%

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Client Relationship Manager: Blake Phillips, CFA®
Blake@apcm.net

Your Portfolio Manager: Paul Hanson, CFA®

Contact Phone Number: 907/272 -7575

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH SERIES E BOND
Account Statement - Period Ending July 31, 2021



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH SERIES E BOND
July 31, 2021

Yield
Average Total Market Pct. Annual Accrued to

Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity

U.S. TREASURY 
390,000 US TREASURY NOTES 102.52 399,826 100.80 393,139 15.06 11,212 2,377 0.10

2.875% Due 11-15-21
365,000 US TREASURY NOTES 101.40 370,104 101.11 369,048 14.14 9,125 422 0.07

2.500% Due 01-15-22
50,000 US TREASURY NOTES 102.02 51,008 101.43 50,715 1.94 1,187 449 0.09

2.375% Due 03-15-22
250,000 US TREASURY NOTES 101.63 254,072 101.59 253,975 9.73 4,375 202 0.09

1.750% Due 07-15-22
Accrued Interest 3,449 0.13

1,075,011 1,070,326 41.00 3,449

TREASURY BILLS
300,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.97 299,922 100.00 299,994 11.49 NA 0 0.03

0.000% Due 08-26-21
300,000 TREASURY BILL 99.97 299,924 99.99 299,985 11.49 NA 0 0.04

0.000% Due 09-16-21
300,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.98 299,944 99.99 299,967 11.49 NA 0 0.05

0.000% Due 10-21-21
300,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.98 299,955 99.99 299,961 11.49 NA 0 0.05

0.000% Due 10-28-21
315,000 US TREASURY BILL 99.98 314,950 99.98 314,946 12.06 NA 0 0.05

0.000% Due 12-02-21

1,514,695 1,514,853 58.03 0

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
FEDERATED GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS 
INSTITUTI

25,314 25,314 0.97

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 2,615,019 2,610,493 100 25,900 3,449

* Callable security



Clients are encouraged to compare this report with the official statement from their custodian.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.80

0.90

1.00

Current
Month

Current
Quarter

Year to
Date

Latest 1
Year

Inception
to Date

Portfolio 0.09 0.09 0.10 0.17 0.92
Benchmark 0.09 0.09 0.06 0.11 0.90

P
e

rc
e

nt
 T

o
ta

l R
e

tu
rn

 (
G

ro
ss

)

Performance is Annualized for Periods Greater than One Year

Current Account Benchmark:
50% Bloomberg Barclays 1-3 Yr Gov/50% 

FTSE 3mo Tbill

Fixed Income Portfolio Statistics

Average Quality: AAA   Yield to Maturity: 0.12%   Average Maturity: 1.02 Yrs

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Portfolio Value on 06-30-21 1,074,072

Contributions 0
Withdrawals -165
Change in Market Value 712
Interest 294
Dividends 0

Portfolio Value on 07-31-21 1,074,914 PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

Cash
51%

US Treas
49%

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Client Relationship Manager: Blake Phillips, CFA®
Blake@apcm.net

Your Portfolio Manager: Paul Hanson, CFA®

Contact Phone Number: 907/272-7575

AEB 2010 SERIES B BOND/AKUTAN AIR
Account Statement - Period Ending July 31, 2021



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

AEB 2010 SERIES B BOND/AKUTAN AIR
July 31, 2021

Yield
Average Total Market Pct. Annual Accrued to

Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity

U.S. TREASURY 
85,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.10 85,083 101.78 86,510 8.05 1,594 4 0.10

1.875% Due 07-31-22
55,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.43 55,234 102.43 56,336 5.24 962 3 0.13

1.750% Due 01-31-23
100,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.80 99,805 99.94 99,938 9.30 125 32 0.16

0.125% Due 04-30-23
70,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.20 70,137 100.14 70,101 6.52 175 22 0.17

0.250% Due 06-15-23
70,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.82 69,877 99.83 69,880 6.50 87 33 0.21

0.125% Due 09-15-23
65,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.36 64,584 99.68 64,789 6.03 81 4 0.26

0.125% Due 01-15-24
15,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.71 14,956 99.82 14,973 1.39 37 8 0.31

0.250% Due 05-15-24
60,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.34 59,606 99.78 59,869 5.57 150 19 0.33

0.250% Due 06-15-24
Accrued Interest 125 0.01

519,281 522,522 48.61 125

TREASURY BILLS
35,000 US CASH MGMT BILL 99.99 34,996 99.99 34,998 3.26 NA 0 0.04

0.000% Due 09-28-21
510,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.99 509,942 99.99 509,954 47.44 NA 0 0.05

0.000% Due 10-07-21

544,937 544,952 50.70 0

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
CASH RECEIVABLE 1,278 1,278 0.12 NA
FEDERATED GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS 
INSTITUTI

6,162 6,162 0.57

7,440 7,440 0.69
TOTAL PORTFOLIO 1,071,659 1,074,914 100 3,212 125



Consent Agenda 



 

     
 

ANCHORAGE OFFICE   3380 C Street, Ste 205     Anchorage, AK  99503-3952     (907)274-7555     Fax: (907)276-7569   
KING COVE OFFICE     P.O. Box 49     King Cove, AK 99612     (907)497-2588     Fax:  (907)497-2386   

SAND POINT OFFICE     P.O. Box 349     Sand Point, AK 99661    (907)383-2699     Fax:  (907)383-3496   

 
 

RESOLUTION 22-11 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH APPOINTING ELECTION 
JUDGES FOR THE OCTOBER 5, 2021 REGULAR BOROUGH ELECTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the borough regular election will be held on October 5, 2021, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Aleutians East Borough Code, Section 4.08.020 requires that the 
Assembly appoint three election judges from each designated polling place, and 
 
WHEREAS, the borough clerk has recommended the following names to the Assembly 
to serve in this capacity: 
 

SAND POINT 
 Robin Kenezuroff  Head Judge 

Beverly Johansen  Judge 
Amber Nicholi  Judge 
 
KING COVE 
Cosette Bendixen  Head Judge 
Kimberly Newman  Judge 
Carisa Brandell  Judge 
Diane Kuzakin  Judge 
 
AKUTAN 
Amanda Tcheripanoff Head Judge 
Alice Tcheripanoff  Judge 
April Pelkey   Judge 
Jolene Borenin  Judge 
 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Assembly of the Aleutians East Borough: 
 
 1.  The above list of persons are appointed to serve as election judges in the 

October 5, 2021 election. 
 
 
 



 
Resolution 22-11  

 
 
 2.  They shall serve under the direction of the borough clerk to conduct the 

election in a proper manner. 
 

3.  Should they be unable to fulfill their duties on election day an alternative 
shall be named by the borough clerk. 

 
4. They shall be compensated at the rate of $200.00 per day worked. 

 
 APPROVED this 9th   day of September , 2021. 
 
 
 
             
         Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
       Clerk 
 



 

     
 

ANCHORAGE OFFICE   3380 C Street, Ste 205     Anchorage, AK  99503-3952     (907)274-7555     Fax: (907)276-7569   
KING COVE OFFICE     P.O. Box 49     King Cove, AK 99612     (907)497-2588     Fax:  (907)497-2386   

SAND POINT OFFICE     P.O. Box 349     Sand Point, AK 99661    (907)383-2699     Fax:  (907)383-3496   

 
 

RESOLUTION 22-12 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH APPOINTING THE CANVASS 
COMMITTEE FOR THE OCTOBER 5, 2021 REGULAR BOROUGH ELECTION. 
 
 WHEREAS, the borough regular election will be held on October 5, 2021, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Aleutians East Borough Code, Section 4.08.040 requires that the 
Assembly appoint a canvass committee to canvass all votes after the election judges tally, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the borough clerk has recommended the following names to the Assembly to 
serve in this capacity: 
 

 Robin Kenezuroff  Head Judge 
Beverly Johansen  Judge 
Amber Nicholi  Judge 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ASSEMBLY OF THE ALEUTIANS 
EAST BOROUGH: 
 
 1.  The above list of persons is appointed to serve as the Canvass Committee 

 for the October 5, 2021 election. 
 
 2.  They shall serve under the direction of the borough clerk to conduct the  canvass 

in a timely and proper manner. 
 
 3.  Should they be unable to fulfill their duties an alternative shall be named by 

 the borough clerk. 
 
 4. They shall be compensated at the rate of $50.00 per day worked. 
 
 Approved this  9th   day of September , 2021. 
 
 
             
       Mayor Alvin D. Osterback 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Tina Anderson, Clerk 



Memo:  Resolution 22-13, Assembly Approval of ASLS 2017-46 
Date: September 3, 2021 
From:  Ernie Weiss 
 
AEB Municipal Code section 40.05.105(a) states that “in the event that the Aleutians East 
Borough Planning Commission is unable to meet, then the Aleutians East Borough Assembly 
shall act as the Aleutians East Borough Platting Board.” 

The AEB Assembly acting as the AEB Platting Board on August 12th, adopted Platting Board 
Resolution 22-01 expressing approval by the Platting Board of Alaska State Land Survey 
(ASLS) 2017-46, and forwarding to the Assembly for final approval at the September meeting. 

The following resolution states final approval of ASLS 2017-46 by the AEB Assembly. 
Following Assembly approval, mylar copies of ASLS 2017-46 will be prepared for signatures by 
the Mayor, Administrator, McClintock Land Associates and The Alaska Department of Natural 
Resources. 

Background 

On January 31, 1995, the total AEB Municipal Land Entitlement was certified at 7633 acres. As 
part of the AEB Municipal Entitlement, the AEB selected nearly 2400 acres along Sandy River, 
which was finally approved in 2005. In order to move to final conveyance and patent, municipal 
entitlement lands must first be surveyed. 

In response to an AEB request, the State of Alaska Department of Natural Resources issued 
survey instructions on April 12, 2018 for ASLS 2017-46 (Sections 3,4 & 5 of Township 046S, 
Range 070W, Meridian S) approx. 1873 acres, and for ASLS 2017-47 (Section 5 of Township 
046S, Range 069W, Meridian S) approx. 540 acres. 

We finalized a contract in July 2018 with McClintock Land Associates to accomplish the 
surveys, and the field work for the surveys occurred later that summer.  

While DNR has reviewed and accepted ASLS 2017-46 as presented, there was some debate over 
meanders of the river in ASLS 2017-47 that created islands. McClintock believes we are close to 
reaching a resolution with DNR on this question to soon move to DNR acceptance of 2017-47. 

Recommendation 

Recommend the Assembly adopt Resolution 22-13. 

 



 
 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 22-13 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH APPROVING ALASKA 
STATE LAND SURVEY 2017-46  

 
 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Aleutians East Borough contracted with McClintock Land Associates in 2018 to 
survey municipal land selections near Sandy River, towards the eventual result of final conveyance 
from the State, and 
 
WHEREAS, State of Alaska Department of Natural Resources issued survey instructions in 2018 
for AEB municipal land selections near Sandy River of three contiguous sections totaling 1873 
acres known as Alaska State Land Survey (ASLS) 2017-46, and a fourth separate section totaling 
540 acres known as ASLS 2017-47, and 
 
WHEREAS, ASLS 2017-46 has been reviewed by the State of Alaska Department of Natural 
Resources and is ready for Borough approval. 
 
WHEREAS, the Aleutians East Borough Assembly acting as the Aleutians East Borough Platting 
Board; per AEB Municipal Code section 40.05.105, approved ASLS 2017-46 on August 12th, 
forwarding to the Assembly for final approval, and 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Aleutians East Borough Assembly approves 
ASLS 2017-46 for final signatures. 
 
Approved and Adopted this 9th day of September, 2021. 
 
 
 
_____________________     _____________________ 
Alvin D. Osterback, Mayor     Tina Anderson, Clerk  



SHEET 1 OF 5
INDEX SHEET

BASIS OF COORDINATES

BASIS OF BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRILL HOLE ACCESS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.  THIS SURVEY WAS ACCOMPLISHED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  AS 29.65 AND MSI 2017-46. 2.  ALL BEARINGS SHOWN ARE TRUE BEARINGS AS ORIENTED TO THE BASIS OF BEARINGS AND DISTANCES SHOWN ARE REDUCED TO HORIZONTAL FIELD DISTANCES. 3.  THE ERROR OF CLOSURE FOR THIS SURVEY IS NOT GREATER THAN 1:5000. 4.  THE NATURAL MEANDERS OF THE LINE OF ORDINARY HIGH WATER FORM THE TRUE BOUNDS OF ASLS 2017-46.  THE APPROXIMATE LINE OF OHW AS SHOWN, IS FOR AREA COMPUTATIONS ONLY, WITH THE TRUE CORNERS BEING ON THE EXTENSION OF THE SIDE LINES AND THEIR INTERSECTION WITH THE NATURAL MEANDERS. 5.  THE BASIS OF COORDINATES IS THE NE COR OF ASLS No. 2017-46, IDENTICAL WITH THE NE COR OF SEC 3, T.46S., R.70W., SM. THE GEODETIC POSITION WAS DETERMINED FROM GPS STATIC OBSERVATIONS AND WAS BASED ON NGS OPUS REPORT JULY 19, 2018. THE NAD27 (NORTH AMERICAN DATUM OF 1927) GEODETIC COORDINATE WAS OBTAINED USING NADCON5, A NGS NORTH AMERICAN DATUM CONVERSION PROGRAM. 6.  IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FINAL FINDING AND DECISION, DATED JUNE 8, 2005 FOR ADL No. 226711; A 100' WIDE RIPARIAN BUFFER FROM THE ORDINARY HIGH WATER MARK OF SANDY RIVER (ANADROMOUS RIVER # 315-12-10100) IS RESERVED TO THE STATE. RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURES, FENCES, AND OTHER NON-WATER-DEPENDENT STRUCTURES THAT WILL OBSTRUCT PASSAGE ARE PROHIBITED. VEGETATION MUST REMAIN SUBSTANTIALLY INTACT AND ACTIVITIES WITHIN THIS BUFFER MUST BE COMPATIBLE WITH THE OBJECTIVES OF PROTECTING FISHERIES, WILDLIFE AND HABITAT. CONTACT ADNR FOR GUIDANCE ON WHAT LIMITED DEVELOPMENT MAY BE ALLOWED IN THIS BUFFER. 7.  IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PRELIMINARY FINDING AND DECISION, DATED SEPTEMBER 12, 2004 FOR ADL 226711; A 100' WIDE BUILDING SETBACK UPLAND OF AND COINCIDENT TO THE ORDINARY HIGH WATER OF THE SANDY RIVER IS RESERVED TO THE STATE. 8.  IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS 38.05.127, A 50' PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT 50' UPLAND FROM THE ORDINARY HIGH-WATER LINE OF ALL NAVIGABLE WATERS IS RESERVED TO THE STATE. 9.  IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS 38.05.127, A PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT ON THE BED AND  50' UPLAND FROM THE ORDINARY HIGH-WATER LINE OF ALL PUBLIC WATERS IS RESERVED TO THE STATE. 10. IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PRELIMINARY FINDING AND DECISION, DATED SEPTEMBER 12, 2004 FOR ADL 226711; A 50' WIDE BUILDING SETBACK FROM THE ORDINARY HIGH WATER LINE OF THE LAKE IN THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 3 IS RESERVED TO THE STATE. 11. IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PRELIMINARY FINDING AND DECISION, DATED SEPTEMBER 12, 2004 FOR ADL 226711; A 100' WIDE PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT, 50' EACH SIDE, SHALL BE COINCIDENT WITH THE CENTERLINE OF SANDY RIVER AIRSTRIP. 12. IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PRELIMINARY FINDING AND DECISION, DATED SEPTEMBER 12, 2004 FOR ADL 226711; A 100' WIDE PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT, 50' EACH SIDE, SHALL BE COINCIDENT WITH THE CENTERLINE OF DRILL HOLE ACCESS ROAD. 13. SEE SHEET 5 FOR MONUMENT CAP MARKINGS AND DESCRIPTIONS. 14. SEE SHEET 2 AND 4 FOR MEANDER LINE DATA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UNOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUE NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAGNETIC NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOAA NCEI WEBSITE (JUNE 2017) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAGNETIC DECLINATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
11%%D49' E

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UCERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP AND DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UNOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20      , BY                                                    .   

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN BEFORE ME THIS            DAY  OF              , 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTARY FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTOR, DIVISION OF MINING, LAND & WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLIAM McCLINTOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR (LS 5480)

AutoCAD SHX Text
McCLINTOCK LAND ASSOCIATES, INC. (AECC596)

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE  ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH HEREBY APPROVES THE SURVEY AND PLAT SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UBOROUGH APPROVAL CERTIFICATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEREON.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH PLATTING AUTHORITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS SUBDIVISION LIES OUTSIDE OF ANY TAXING AUTHORITY, AT THE TIME OF FILING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UTAX CERTIFICATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UAPPLICANT CERTIFICATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I,  THE UNDERSIGNED,  HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM THE APPLICANT AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEREON.  I HEREBY APPROVE THIS SURVEY AND PLAT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UNOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTARY FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANNE BAILEY, ADMINISTRATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADL No. 226711

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,000 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,000 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
3,000 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
4,000 feet

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
250 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
500 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
750 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,000 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,250 meters

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH

AutoCAD SHX Text
I,  THE UNDERSIGNED,  HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM THE DIRECTOR, DIVISION OF MINING, LAND AND WATER AND THAT THE  STATE OF ALASKA  IS THE OWNER OF ASLS No. 2017-46,  AS SHOWN HEREON.  I  HEREBY APPROVE THIS SURVEY AND PLAT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA,  AND DEDICATE FOR PUBLIC OR PRIVATE USE AS NOTED, ALL EASEMENTS, PUBLIC UTILITY AREAS,  AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY AS SHOWN AND DESCRIBED HEREON.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I CERTIFY THAT I AM PROPERLY REGISTERED AND LICENSED TO PRACTICE LAND SURVEYING IN THE STATE OF ALASKA, THAT THIS PLAT REPRESENTS A SURVEY MADE BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION, THAT THE MONUMENTS SHOWN HEREON ACTUALLY EXIST AS DESCRIBED, AND THAT ALL DIMENSIONS AND OTHER DETAILS ARE CORRECT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 METER = 3.2808333 U.S. SURVEY FEET,  1 U.S. ACRE = 0.4047 HECTARE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A SUBDIVISION OF TRACT A,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWARD MERIDIAN, ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATED WITHIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALEUTIAN ISLANDS RECORDING DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASLS 20170046

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY: MPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 01-13-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATEWIDE PLATTING SUPERVISOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALASKA STATE LAND SURVEY NO. 2017-46

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIVISION OF MINING, LAND & WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE OF SURVEY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAME OF SURVEYOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
McCLINTOCK LAND ASSOCIATES, INC. (AECC596)

AutoCAD SHX Text
16942 NORTH EAGLE RIVER LOOP RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAGLE RIVER, ALASKA  99577

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEGINNING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENDING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-13-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-20-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTAINING 1,872.96 ACRES, MORE OR LESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNSHIP 46 SOUTH, RANGE 70 WEST, SEWARD MERIDIAN, ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNSHIP 46 SOUTH, RANGE 70 WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNSURVEYED SECTIONS 3, 4 AND 5,

AutoCAD SHX Text
(907) 694-4499

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 1,000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE COR. ASLS No. 2017-46

AutoCAD SHX Text
IDENTICAL WITH THE NE COR. SEC. 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAT.   56%%D14'05.616" N

AutoCAD SHX Text
LONG. 160%%D09'55.834" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NAD 1927)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAT.   56%%D14'02.675" N

AutoCAD SHX Text
LONG. 160%%D10'03.331" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NAD 1983)(2011)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE NOTE 5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLIAM McCLINTOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS 5480

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1" = 1 mile

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UVICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
USGS QUADRANGLE MAPS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHIGNIK (A-7), 1963, MINOR REVISION 1982

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN BEFORE ME THIS           DAY  OF                ,

AutoCAD SHX Text
20      , BY                                                     .

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNSHIP 45 SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNSHIP 46 SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANGE 71 WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANGE 70 WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT OF T.46S., R.70W., OFFICIALLY FILED ON 1-12-2010

AutoCAD SHX Text
(20,906.82')

AutoCAD SHX Text
20,906.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE COR. ASLS No. 2017-46 To NW COR. T.46S., R.70W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
 WEST  (MEAN)  NAD27WEST  (MEAN)  NAD27

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW COR. ASLS No. 2017-46

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAT.   56%%D13'13.569" N

AutoCAD SHX Text
LONG. 160%%D14'36.076" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NAD 1927)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAT.   56%%D13'10.623" N

AutoCAD SHX Text
LONG. 160%%D14'43.549" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NAD 1983)(2011)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IDENTICAL WITH THE SW COR. SEC. 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASLS No. 2017-46 1,872.36 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNSURVEYED REMAINDER TRACT A T.46S., R.70W., S.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNSURVEYED REMAINDER TRACT A T.46S., R.70W., S.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.45S., R.70W., S.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRILL HOLE ACCESS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNSURVEYED REMAINDER TRACT A T.46S., R.70W., S.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASLS No. 2017-46

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANDY

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.45S., R.70W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.45S., R.71W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.46S., R.70W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.46S., R.71W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GRAVEL AIRSTRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
River

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sandy

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNNAMED LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEASURED DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLO/BLM MONUMENT RECOVERED (SEE SHEET 5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX XX XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYED LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNSURVEYED LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT DESIGNATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIMARY MONUMENT SET THIS SURVEY (SEE SHEET 5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(XX XX XX)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORD DATA PER PLAT OF T46S R.70W., OFFICIALLY FILED ON 1-12-2010

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEANDER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT A

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT A

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT E

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT D



SHEET 2 OF 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89° 59' 41"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
2639.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2639.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89° 59' 08"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1950.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2500.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2171.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0° 00' 18"W              5281.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2640.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4 SEC. COR. to WCMC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. COR. to 1/4 SEC. COR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
469.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WCMC to SEC. COR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WCMC to WCMC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WD=97.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WD=81.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WD to MC=132.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WD to SEC. COR.=330.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
WD to MC=187.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4 SEC. COR. to SEC. COR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. COR. to 1/4 SEC. COR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4 SEC. COR. to SEC. COR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WCMC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WCMC

AutoCAD SHX Text
829.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. COR. to WCMC

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' Public Access Easement reserved to the State per AS 38.05.127. See Note 8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' Protracted Section Line Easement per AS 19.10.010

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' Section Line Easement per AS 19.10.010

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ordinary High Water Line (July 2018)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' Section Line Easement per AS 19.10.010

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' Public Access Easement reserved to the State per AS 38.05.127. See Note 8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ordinary High Water Line (July 2018)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WCMC to SEC. COR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' Public Access Easement per Preliminary Decision for ADL No. 226711. See Note 11.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' Public Access Easement per Preliminary Decision for ADL No. 226711.  See Note 12.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89° 59' 03"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89° 59' 40"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' Section Line Easement per AS 19.10.010

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4 SEC. COR. to END CENTERLINE AIRSTRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
N54° 11' 02"E     4550.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE AIRSTRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89° 59' 42"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89° 59' 01"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
(WEST  5280.00')

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' Building Setback and 100' Riparian Buffer  See Note 6 and 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' Building Setback and 100' Riparian Buffer  See Note 6 and 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
563.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL ROAD  TO  WCMC

AutoCAD SHX Text
   S47° 04' 22"E   1865.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUE NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAGNETIC NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOAA NCEI WEBSITE (JUNE 2017) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAGNETIC DECLINATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
11%%D49' E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 METER = 3.2808333 U.S. SURVEY FEET,  1 U.S. ACRE = 0.4047 HECTARE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A SUBDIVISION OF TRACT A,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWARD MERIDIAN, ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATED WITHIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALEUTIAN ISLANDS RECORDING DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASLS 20170046

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY: MPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 01-13-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATEWIDE PLATTING SUPERVISOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALASKA STATE LAND SURVEY NO. 2017-46

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIVISION OF MINING, LAND & WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE OF SURVEY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAME OF SURVEYOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
McCLINTOCK LAND ASSOCIATES, INC. (AECC596)

AutoCAD SHX Text
16942 NORTH EAGLE RIVER LOOP RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAGLE RIVER, ALASKA  99577

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEGINNING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENDING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-13-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-20-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTAINING 1,872.96 ACRES, MORE OR LESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNSHIP 46 SOUTH, RANGE 70 WEST, SEWARD MERIDIAN, ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNSHIP 46 SOUTH, RANGE 70 WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNSURVEYED SECTIONS 3, 4 AND 5,

AutoCAD SHX Text
(907) 694-4499

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 300'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASLS No. 2017-46

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNSURVEYED REMAINDER TRACT A T.46S., R.70W., S.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
River

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sandy

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNSURVEYED REMAINDER TRACT A T.46S., R.70W., S.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT A T.45S., R.70W., S.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT B T.45S., R.70W., S.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRILL HOLE ACCESS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT A T.45S., R.70W., S.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT D T.45S., R.70W., S.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
River

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sandy

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
300 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
600 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
900 ft 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,200 feet

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
75 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
150 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
225 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
300 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
375 meters

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEASURED DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLO/BLM MONUMENT RECOVERED (SEE SHEET 5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX XX XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYED LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNSURVEYED LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIMARY MONUMENT SET THIS SURVEY (SEE SHEET 5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(XX XX XX)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORD DATA PER PLAT OF T46S R.70W., OFFICIALLY FILED ON 1-12-2010

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEANDER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89° 58' 05"W  5067.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(WEST   5066.82')

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF EXISTING GRAVEL AIRSTRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLIAM McCLINTOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS 5480

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT DESIGNATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 3



SHEET 3 OF 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2639.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2639.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2309.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2639.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4 SEC. COR. to WP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WD to MC=132.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WD to SEC. COR.=330.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. COR. to 1/4 SEC. COR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4 SEC. COR. to SEC. COR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. COR. to 1/4 SEC. COR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' Protracted Section Line Easement per AS 19.10.010

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' Protracted Section Line Easement per AS 19.10.010

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' Section Line Easement per AS 19.10.010

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' Section Line Easement per AS 19.10.010

AutoCAD SHX Text
(WEST  5280.00')

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' Public Access Easement per Preliminary Decision for ADL No. 226711.  See Note 12.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89° 59' 40"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89° 59' 01"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89° 59' 41"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89° 59' 04"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1441.30' CL ROAD TO 1/4 SEC. COR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
395.32' SEC. COR. TO CL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUE NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAGNETIC NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOAA NCEI WEBSITE (JUNE 2017) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAGNETIC DECLINATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
11%%D49' E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 METER = 3.2808333 U.S. SURVEY FEET,  1 U.S. ACRE = 0.4047 HECTARE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A SUBDIVISION OF TRACT A,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWARD MERIDIAN, ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATED WITHIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALEUTIAN ISLANDS RECORDING DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASLS 20170046

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY: MPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 01-13-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATEWIDE PLATTING SUPERVISOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALASKA STATE LAND SURVEY NO. 2017-46

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIVISION OF MINING, LAND & WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE OF SURVEY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAME OF SURVEYOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
McCLINTOCK LAND ASSOCIATES, INC. (AECC596)

AutoCAD SHX Text
16942 NORTH EAGLE RIVER LOOP RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAGLE RIVER, ALASKA  99577

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEGINNING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENDING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-13-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-20-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTAINING 1,872.96 ACRES, MORE OR LESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNSHIP 46 SOUTH, RANGE 70 WEST, SEWARD MERIDIAN, ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNSHIP 46 SOUTH, RANGE 70 WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNSURVEYED SECTIONS 3, 4 AND 5,

AutoCAD SHX Text
(907) 694-4499

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 300'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASLS No. 2017-46

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sandy

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNSURVEYED REMAINDER TRACT A T.46S., R.70W., S.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GRAVEL AIRSTRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT D T.45S., R.70W., S.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT E T.45S., R.70W., S.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UNOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 2 FOR MEANDER TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
300 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
600 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
900 ft 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,200 feet

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
75 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
150 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
225 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
300 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
375 meters

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRILL HOLE ACCESS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEASURED DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLO/BLM MONUMENT RECOVERED (SEE SHEET 5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX XX XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYED LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNSURVEYED LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIMARY MONUMENT SET THIS SURVEY (SEE SHEET 5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(XX XX XX)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORD DATA PER PLAT OF T46S R.70W., OFFICIALLY FILED ON 1-12-2010

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEANDER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLIAM McCLINTOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS 5480

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ordinary High Water Line (July 2018)

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' Building Setback and 100' Riparian Buffer See Note 6 and 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' Public Access Easement reserved to the State per AS 38.05.127. See Note 8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
River

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT DESIGNATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
F



SHEET 4 OF 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89° 58' 25"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
2639.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2639.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4 SEC. COR. to SEC. COR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. COR. to 1/4 SEC. COR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MC to MC

AutoCAD SHX Text
2641.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2640.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4 COR. to SEC. COR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. COR. to 1/4 COR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0° 00' 32"E  5281.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' Protracted Section Line Easement per AS 19.10.010

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' Section Line Easement per AS 19.10.010

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' Section Line Easement per AS 19.10.010

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' Section Line Easement per AS 19.10.010

AutoCAD SHX Text
(WEST  5280.00')

AutoCAD SHX Text
A Public Access Easement on the bed and 50' upland from ordinary high water line is reserved to the State per AS 38.05.127. See Note 9.

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' Public Access Easement per Preliminary Decision for ADL No. 226711.  See Note 12.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4 SEC. COR. to SEC. COR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MC to  1/4 SEC. COR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. COR. to MC

AutoCAD SHX Text
2639.77'

AutoCAD SHX Text
503.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1331.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
804.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89° 58' 22"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89° 57' 44"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
395.32' SEC. COR. TO CL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89° 57' 47"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' Building Setback See Note 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
444.46' 1/4 SEC. COR. TO CL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUE NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAGNETIC NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOAA NCEI WEBSITE (JUNE 2017) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAGNETIC DECLINATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
11%%D49' E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 METER = 3.2808333 U.S. SURVEY FEET,  1 U.S. ACRE = 0.4047 HECTARE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A SUBDIVISION OF TRACT A,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWARD MERIDIAN, ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATED WITHIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALEUTIAN ISLANDS RECORDING DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASLS 20170046

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY: MPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 01-13-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATEWIDE PLATTING SUPERVISOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALASKA STATE LAND SURVEY NO. 2017-46

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIVISION OF MINING, LAND & WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE OF SURVEY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAME OF SURVEYOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
McCLINTOCK LAND ASSOCIATES, INC. (AECC596)

AutoCAD SHX Text
16942 NORTH EAGLE RIVER LOOP RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAGLE RIVER, ALASKA  99577

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEGINNING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENDING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-13-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-20-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTAINING 1,872.96 ACRES, MORE OR LESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNSHIP 46 SOUTH, RANGE 70 WEST, SEWARD MERIDIAN, ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNSHIP 46 SOUTH, RANGE 70 WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNSURVEYED SECTIONS 3, 4 AND 5,

AutoCAD SHX Text
(907) 694-4499

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 300'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASLS No. 2017-46

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT E T.45S., R.70W., S.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNSURVEYED REMAINDER TRACT A T.46S., R.70W., S.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNSURVEYED REMAINDER TRACT A T.46S., R.70W., S.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
300 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
600 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
900 ft 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,200 feet

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
75 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
150 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
225 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
300 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
375 meters

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNNAMED LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRILL HOLE ACCESS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEASURED DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLO/BLM MONUMENT RECOVERED (SEE SHEET 5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX XX XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYED LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNSURVEYED LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIMARY MONUMENT SET THIS SURVEY (SEE SHEET 5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(XX XX XX)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORD DATA PER PLAT OF T46S R.70W., OFFICIALLY FILED ON 1-12-2010

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEANDER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLIAM McCLINTOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS 5480

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT DESIGNATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
F



SHEET 5 OF 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 METER = 3.2808333 U.S. SURVEY FEET,  1 U.S. ACRE = 0.4047 HECTARE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A SUBDIVISION OF TRACT A,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWARD MERIDIAN, ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATED WITHIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALEUTIAN ISLANDS RECORDING DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASLS 20170046

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY: MPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 01-13-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATEWIDE PLATTING SUPERVISOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALASKA STATE LAND SURVEY NO. 2017-46

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIVISION OF MINING, LAND & WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE OF SURVEY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAME OF SURVEYOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
McCLINTOCK LAND ASSOCIATES, INC. (AECC596)

AutoCAD SHX Text
16942 NORTH EAGLE RIVER LOOP RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAGLE RIVER, ALASKA  99577

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEGINNING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENDING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-13-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-20-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTAINING 1,872.96 ACRES, MORE OR LESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNSHIP 46 SOUTH, RANGE 70 WEST, SEWARD MERIDIAN, ALASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNSHIP 46 SOUTH, RANGE 70 WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNSURVEYED SECTIONS 3, 4 AND 5,

AutoCAD SHX Text
(907) 694-4499

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS5480

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 3 1/4 ins. alum. cap monument on  2 1/2 ins. x 30 ins. alum. post, 26 ins. in the ground, fiberglass post North 1.0 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2" alum. cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears S89°59'08"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
on 5/8"x36" rebar

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 3 1/4 ins. alum. cap monument on  2 1/2 ins. x 30 ins. alum. post, 28 ins. in the ground,, fiberglass post North 1.0 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2" alum. cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears S0°00'32"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
on 5/8"x36" rebar

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS5480

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 3 1/4 ins. alum. cap monument on  2 1/2 ins. x 30 ins. alum. post, 26 ins. in the ground, fiberglass post North 1.0 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2" alum. cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
on 5/8"x36" rebar

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS5480

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 3 1/4 ins. alum. cap monument on  2 1/2 ins. x 30 ins. alum. post, 26 ins. in the ground, fiberglass post North 1.0 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2" alum. cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears S89°58'22"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
on 5/8"x36" rebar

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS5480

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 3 1/4 ins. alum. cap monument on  2 1/2 ins. x 30 ins. alum. post, 28 ins. in the ground, fiberglass post North 1.0 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2" alum. cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
on 5/8"x36" rebar

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS5480

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 3 1/4 ins. alum. cap monument on  2 1/2 ins. x 30 ins. alum. post, 26 ins. in the ground, fiberglass post North 1.0 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2" alum. cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
on 5/8"x36" rebar

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
T46S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears N89°59'03"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT CAP MARKINGS AND DESCRIPTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 3 1/4 ins. alum. cap monument on  2 1/2 ins. x 30 ins. alum. post, 28 ins. in the ground, fiberglass post North 1.0 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2" alum. cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears N0°00'18"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
on 5/8"x36" rebar

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 3 1/4 ins. alum. cap monument on  2 1/2 ins. x 30 ins. alum. post, 28 ins. in the ground,, fiberglass post North 1.0 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2" alum. cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
on 5/8"x36" rebar

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS5480

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
Recovered 3 1/4 ins. BLM brass cap monument on 2 1/2 ins. stainless steel post, flush with the ground, good condition

AutoCAD SHX Text
2001

AutoCAD SHX Text
Steel fence post North 3.0 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2001

AutoCAD SHX Text
T45S R70W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S35

AutoCAD SHX Text
S34

AutoCAD SHX Text
S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
T46S

AutoCAD SHX Text
Recovered 3 1/4 ins. BLM brass cap monument on 2 1/2 ins. stainless steel post, projecting 2 ins. above the ground, good condition

AutoCAD SHX Text
Steel fence post Northeast 3.0 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T45S R70W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S33

AutoCAD SHX Text
S4

AutoCAD SHX Text
T46S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears S89°59'08"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS5480

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears S0°00'32"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears N0°00'32"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears S89°57'44"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears S89°58'22"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears N0°00'18"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears S89°59'01"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears N89°59'03"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS5480

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears S89°59'03"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
MC1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S6

AutoCAD SHX Text
T46S R70W

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears S0°00'18"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears S0°00'18"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
2001

AutoCAD SHX Text
Recovered 3 1/4 ins. BLM brass cap monument on 2 1/2 ins. stainless steel post, flush with the ground, good condition

AutoCAD SHX Text
Steel fence post North 3.0 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R71W R70W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S31

AutoCAD SHX Text
S36

AutoCAD SHX Text
S6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1

AutoCAD SHX Text
T46S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T45S

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 3 1/4 ins. alum. cap monument on  2 1/2 ins. x 30 ins. alum. post, 26 ins. in the ground,, fiberglass post North 1.0 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2" alum. cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears N89°57'47"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
on 5/8"x36" rebar

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS5480

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 3 1/4 ins. alum. cap monument on  2 1/2 ins. x 30 ins. alum. post, 28 ins. in the ground, fiberglass post North 1.0 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2" alum. cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
on 5/8"x36" rebar

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 3 1/4 ins. alum. cap monument on  2 1/2 ins. x 30 ins. alum. post, 28 ins. in the ground, fiberglass post North 1.0 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2" alum. cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears S89°59'41"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
on 5/8"x36" rebar

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 3 1/4 ins. alum. cap monument on  2 1/2 ins. x 30 ins. alum. post, 26 ins. in the ground, fiberglass post North 1.0 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2" alum. cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
on 5/8"x36" rebar

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
S34

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
T45S R70W

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS5480

AutoCAD SHX Text
T46S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S34

AutoCAD SHX Text
T45S R70W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears N89°57'47"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T46S

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears S0°00'18"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears S89°59'04"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears N89°59'08"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears N89°59'08"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS5480

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 3 1/4 ins. alum. cap monument on  2 1/2 ins. x 30 ins. alum. post, 28 ins. in the ground, fiberglass post North 1.0 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2" alum. cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears N89°59'01"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
on 5/8"x36" rebar

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM1

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 3 1/4 ins. alum. cap monument on  2 1/2 ins. x 30 ins. alum. post, 28 ins. in the ground, fiberglass post North 1.0 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2" alum. cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
on 5/8"x36" rebar

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
S9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S4

AutoCAD SHX Text
T46S R70W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S4

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears N89°59'01"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears N0°00'03"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears N89°59'41"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S4

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T46S R70W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10

AutoCAD SHX Text
S9

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10

AutoCAD SHX Text
S9

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10

AutoCAD SHX Text
S9

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T46S R70W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S11

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S11

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S11

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM2

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T46S R70W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM1

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM2

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S34

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
T46S R70W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
S33

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS5480

AutoCAD SHX Text
T46S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S33

AutoCAD SHX Text
T45S R70W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S4

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears S89°59'41"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM1

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM2

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S33

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS5480

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
T46S R70W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
S9

AutoCAD SHX Text
S8

AutoCAD SHX Text
S4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
S9

AutoCAD SHX Text
S8

AutoCAD SHX Text
S4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
S9

AutoCAD SHX Text
S8

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
T46S R70W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S8

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S8

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM1

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM2

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 3 1/4 ins. alum. cap monument on  2 1/2 ins. x 30 ins. alum. post, 28 ins. in the ground, fiberglass post North 1.0 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
  2" alum. cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears S0°00'18"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
on 5/8"x36" rebar

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM1

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM2

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
S6

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS5480

AutoCAD SHX Text
2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
T46S R70W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bears S0°00'18"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 ins. in ground

AutoCAD SHX Text
T46S R70W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
S6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S8

AutoCAD SHX Text
S7

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
S6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S8

AutoCAD SHX Text
S7

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
S6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S8

AutoCAD SHX Text
S7

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM1

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM2

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM1

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text
S6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
MC1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM2

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text
S6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
MC1

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
S34

AutoCAD SHX Text
S33

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S4

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S34

AutoCAD SHX Text
S33

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S34

AutoCAD SHX Text
S33

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
T46S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
MC3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S32

AutoCAD SHX Text
T45S

AutoCAD SHX Text
R70W

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S32

AutoCAD SHX Text
MC3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S32

AutoCAD SHX Text
MC3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
MC2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S32

AutoCAD SHX Text
T45S  R70W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S32

AutoCAD SHX Text
MC2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
RM2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S32

AutoCAD SHX Text
MC2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S5

AutoCAD SHX Text
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLIAM McCLINTOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS 5480



 
 

Ordinances 



 ORDINANCE SERIAL NO. 22-03 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 2, CHAPTERS 2.04 AND 2.16, SECTIONS 2.04.020, 
2.04.060 AND 2.16.010 OF THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 
 
WHEREAS,  the legislative power of the Aleutians East Borough is vested in the Borough 

Assembly under Alaska State Statute Sec. 29.20.050; and 
 
WHEREAS, dual office holding, a common law doctrine, prohibits the same person from 

holding incompatible offices; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the aim of this prohibition was to prevent the same person from holding multiple 

positions of public trust; and  
 
WHEREAS, the simultaneous holding of more than one public office is a matter of public 

concern; and 
 
WHEREAS,  there is currently no concise code section making it clear that a single person may 

not hold dual offices; and 
 
WHEREAS, such a code section will prevent certain dual office holders. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ADOPTED THAT SECTION 2.04.020 OF THE BOROUGH 
CODE WHICH PREVIOUSLY READ IN ITS ENTIRETY: 
 
 2.04.020   Qualifications of Assembly and School Board Members.  
 

The Assembly and school board members shall be qualified electors of the 
Borough, and shall have been a resident within the Borough for a minimum of one 
(1) year prior to holding office. An Assembly or school board member who ceases 
to be eligible to be a Borough voter immediately forfeits his office. 
 
(Ord 14-04 (Amended Ord. 07-08), Sec. 2.04.020, part, 1987) 
 

 
IS AMENDED TO INCLUDE THIS SENTENCE, READING: 
 

In order to prevent dual office holding, no Borough department heads are eligible 
to run for Borough Assembly or the Borough School District while employed by 
the Borough as a department head. Borough department heads include: the Borough 
Administrator, the Borough Clerk, the Borough Attorney, the Borough 
Maintenance Director, the Natural Resources Department Director and the Finance 
Director. 



 
 
SO THAT THE ENTIRETY OF SECTION 2.04.020 NOW READS: 
 

2.04.020 Qualifications of Assembly and School Board Members.  
 

The Assembly and school board members shall be qualified electors of the 
Borough, and shall have been a resident within the Borough for a minimum of one 
(1) year prior to holding office. An Assembly or school board member who ceases 
to be eligible to be a Borough voter immediately forfeits his office. 

 
In order to prevent dual office holding, no Borough department heads are eligible 
to run for Borough Assembly or the Borough School District or to serve as an 
appointed Assembly Advisory Member while employed by the Borough as a 
department head. Borough department heads include: the Borough Administrator, 
the Borough Clerk, the Borough Attorney, the Borough Maintenance Director, the 
Natural Resources Department Director and the Finance Director. 
 
(Ord 14-04 (Amended Ord. 07-08), Sec. 2.04.020, part, 1987) 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ADOPTED THAT SECTION 2.04.060 OF THE BOROUGH 
CODE WHICH PREVIOUSLY READ IN ITS ENTIRETY: 
 
 2.04.060   Advisory Members.  
 

A. There shall be advisory members appointed on the Assembly with the rights 
and responsibilities as set out in this section. 

 
B. There shall be one for each of the communities in the Borough, which are 

without an Assembly member residing in its respective community. 
 
C. The term of an advisory member is one year and begins on January 1st of each 

year. A person appointed holds office until a successor has been appointed and 
seated.  

 
D. Advisory members may attend all Assembly meetings, work sessions, 

committee of the whole meeting and subcommittee meetings; except, an 
advisory member may not attend executive sessions except upon adoption by 
the Assembly or committee of the motion to permit the advisory members to 
attend the executive session. 

 
E. Advisory members may participate in the discussion of any matter that comes 

before the Assembly or committee, but may not move or section items during 
an Assembly meeting. Advisory Members may cast advisory votes on all 



matters except those subject to executive session discussions. Advisory votes 
shall not affect the outcome of a vote, but shall be recorded in the minutes.  

 
Ord 18-09 (amended Ord. 14-04), Sec. 2.04.060(E), part, 1987 
 

F. Only a person appointed under this section may participate in Assembly 
meetings as an advisory member. An advisory member may not serve as a proxy 
or substitute for a regular member of the Assembly unless appointed or elected 
to fill an Assembly vacancy. Upon such election or appointment to a vacancy, 
the advisory seat held by that person becomes vacant. 

 
G. If an advisory member clearly expresses a position for or against a proposition, 

the minutes of the meeting shall reflect the position expressed. 
 
H. Advisory members will receive per diem, reimbursement and payments in lieu 

as may be provided for Assembly members. 
 
I. The presence or absence of an advisory member at an Assembly meeting, the 

existence of a vacancy in an advisory member seat, and an act or admission of 
an advisory member shall have no effect on any action of the Borough. An 
advisory member has no authority to act on behalf of the Borough and the 
meeting of advisory members does not constitute a meeting of the Assembly or 
any other body of the Borough for any purpose. 

 
J. Advisory members shall be governed by the same rules as elected members 

concerning meeting attendance as provided for in Chapter 2.20 and other 
applicable ordinances. 

 
K. The Assembly may appoint a student representative on the assembly as an 

advisory member. The mayor shall nominate one or more students for the 
assembly to consider for the appointment on a school calendar basis, with a 
term of one year beginning September 1. No student representative may serve 
more than a single one-year term; and no student will be compensated with 
meeting fees. 
The position shall be open to all Aleutians East Borough School District high 
school students, grades 9 through 12. Nominations shall be made by submission 
of letters of interest to their high school student council and principal. The 
student council shall nominate a student to be submitted to the mayor, with 
approval from their high school principal. 
The student representative may not move or second items during an Assembly 
Meeting. The student may cast advisory votes on all matters except those 
subject to executive session discussions. The Advisory votes shall not affect the 
outcome of a vote. Advisory votes shall be recorded in the minutes. 
(Ord 18-09, New Section 2.04.060(K) ) 
 



(Ord. 14-04 (Amended Ord. 08-04), Sec. 2.04.060, part, 1987) 
 

 
IS AMENDED TO INCLUDE THIS SENTENCE, READING: 
 

L. In order to prevent dual office holding, no Borough department heads are 
eligible to serve as an appointed advisory member on the Assembly while 
employed by the Borough as a department head. Borough department heads 
include: the Borough Administrator, the Borough Clerk, the Borough Attorney, 
the Borough Maintenance Director, the Natural Resources Department Director 
and the Finance Director. 

 
 
SO THAT THE ENTIRETY OF SECTION 2.04.060 NOW READS: 
 

2.04.060   Advisory Members.  
 

A. There shall be advisory members appointed on the Assembly with the rights 
and responsibilities as set out in this section. 

 
B. There shall be one for each of the communities in the Borough, which are 

without an Assembly member residing in its respective community. 
 
C. The term of an advisory member is one year and begins on January 1st of each 

year. A person appointed holds office until a successor has been appointed and 
seated.  

 
D. Advisory members may attend all Assembly meetings, work sessions, 

committee of the whole meeting and subcommittee meetings; except, an 
advisory member may not attend executive sessions except upon adoption by 
the Assembly or committee of the motion to permit the advisory members to 
attend the executive session. 

 
E. Advisory members may participate in the discussion of any matter that comes 

before the Assembly or committee, but may not move or section items during 
an Assembly meeting. Advisory Members may cast advisory votes on all 
matters except those subject to executive session discussions. Advisory votes 
shall not affect the outcome of a vote, but shall be recorded in the minutes.  

 
(Ord 18-09 (amended Ord. 14-04), Sec. 2.04.060(E), part, 1987) 

 
F. Only a person appointed under this section may participate in Assembly 

meetings as an advisory member. An advisory member may not serve as a proxy 
or substitute for a regular member of the Assembly unless appointed or elected 
to fill an Assembly vacancy. Upon such election or appointment to a vacancy, 
the advisory seat held by that person becomes vacant. 



 
G. If an advisory member clearly expresses a position for or against a proposition, 

the minutes of the meeting shall reflect the position expressed. 
 
H. Advisory members will receive per diem, reimbursement and payments in lieu 

as may be provided for Assembly members. 
 
I. The presence or absence of an advisory member at an Assembly meeting, the 

existence of a vacancy in an advisory member seat, and an act or admission of 
an advisory member shall have no effect on any action of the Borough. An 
advisory member has no authority to act on behalf of the Borough and the 
meeting of advisory members does not constitute a meeting of the Assembly 
or any other body of the Borough for any purpose. 

 
J. Advisory members shall be governed by the same rules as elected members 

concerning meeting attendance as provided for in Chapter 2.20 and other 
applicable ordinances. 

 
K. The Assembly may appoint a student representative on the assembly as an 

advisory member. The mayor shall nominate one or more students for the 
assembly to consider for the appointment on a school calendar basis, with a 
term of one year beginning September 1. No student representative may serve 
more than a single one-year term; and no student will be compensated with 
meeting fees. 
The position shall be open to all Aleutians East Borough School District high 
school students, grades 9 through 12. Nominations shall be made by 
submission of letters of interest to their high school student council and 
principal. The student council shall nominate a student to be submitted to the 
mayor, with approval from their high school principal. 
The student representative may not move or second items during an Assembly 
Meeting. The student may cast advisory votes on all matters except those 
subject to executive session discussions. The Advisory votes shall not affect 
the outcome of a vote. Advisory votes shall be recorded in the minutes. 
(Ord 18-09, New Section 2.04.060(K) ) 
 

L. In order to prevent dual office holding, no Borough department heads are 
eligible to serve as an appointed advisory member on the Assembly while 
employed by the Borough as a department head. Borough department heads 
include: the Borough Administrator, the Borough Clerk, the Borough 
Attorney, the Borough Maintenance Director, the Natural Resources 
Department Director and the Finance Director. 

 
(Ord. 14-04 (Amended Ord. 08-04), Sec. 2.04.060, part, 1987) 

 
 
  



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ADOPTED THAT SECTION 2.16.010 OF THE BOROUGH 
CODE WHICH PREVIOUSLY READ IN ITS ENTIRETY: 
 

2.16.010   Mayor as Executive.  
 
A. The Mayor is the chief executive officer of the Borough. He shall act as 

ceremonial head of the Borough, and sign documents on the Borough’s behalf 
upon Assembly authorization. 

 
TITLE 2 

ADMINISTRATION 
Chapter 2.16 - Mayor 

2.16.010  Mayor as Executive  
A.  The Mayor is the chief executive officer of the Borough. He shall act as 

ceremonial head of the borough, and sign documents on the Borough’s behalf 
upon Assembly authorization. 

 
B.  The Mayor shall: 

1.  Appoint an Administrator who shall serve at his direction to oversee and 
supervise all departments of the Borough. 

 
2.  Suspend or remove by written order Borough employees and administrative 

officers, except as otherwise provided. 
 
3.  Supervise enforcement of Borough law; 
 
4.  Prepare the annual budget and capital improvement program for the 

Assembly; 
 
5.  Execute the budget and capital program as adopted; 
 
6.  Make monthly financial reports to the Assembly on Borough finances and 

operations. 
 
7.  Report to the Assembly at the end of each fiscal year on the finances and 

administrative activities of the Borough; 
 
8.  Prepare and make available for public distribution an annual report on 

Borough affairs; 
 
9.  Serve as Borough personnel officer unless delegated to the Borough 

Administrator or the Assembly authorizes him to appoint a personnel officer 
other than the Borough Administrator; and 

 
10. Execute other powers and duties specified in AS Title 29 or lawfully 

prescribed by the Assembly. 



 
(Ord. 18-02 (Amended Ord. 14-04), Sec. 2.16.010, part, 1987) 
 

 
IS AMENDED TO REMOVE THE FOLLOWING LANGUAGE AT THE BEGINNING 
OF THIS SECTION, READING: 
 

TITLE 2 
ADMINISTRATION 
Chapter 2.16 - Mayor 

2.16.010  Mayor as Executive  
A.  The Mayor is the chief executive officer of the Borough. He shall act as 

ceremonial head of the borough, and sign documents on the Borough’s behalf 
upon Assembly authorization. 

 
 

AND IS AMENDED TO INCLUDE THIS SENTENCE, READING: 
 

B. In order to prevent dual office holding, no Borough department heads are 
eligible to run for Mayor while employed by the Borough as a department head. 
Borough department heads include: the Borough Administrator, the Borough 
Clerk, the Borough Attorney, the Borough Maintenance Director, the Natural 
Resources Department Director and the Finance Director. 

 
 
SO THAT THE ENTIRETY OF SECTION 2.16.010 NOW READS: 
 

2.16.010   Mayor as Executive.  
 

A. The Mayor is the chief executive officer of the Borough. He shall act as 
ceremonial head of the Borough, and sign documents on the Borough’s behalf 
upon Assembly authorization. 
 

B. In order to prevent dual office holding, no Borough department heads are 
eligible to run for Mayor while employed by the Borough as a department head. 
Borough department heads include: the Borough Administrator, the Borough 
Clerk, the Borough Attorney, the Borough Maintenance Director, the Natural 
Resources Department Director and the Finance Director. 
 

C. The Mayor shall: 
1. Appoint an Administrator who shall serve at his direction to oversee and 

supervise all departments of the Borough; 
 

2. Suspend or remove by written order Borough employees and administrative 
officers, except as otherwise provided; 
 



3. Supervise enforcement of Borough law; 
 

4. Prepare the annual budget and capital improvement program for the Assembly; 
 

5. Execute the budget and capital program as adopted; 
 

6. Make monthly financial reports to the Assembly on Borough finances and 
operations; 
 

7. Report to the Assembly at the end of each fiscal year on the finances and 
administrative activities of the Borough; 
 

8. Prepare and make available for public distribution an annual report on Borough 
affairs; 
 

9. Serve as Borough personnel officer unless delegated to the Borough 
Administrator or the Assembly authorizes him to appoint a personnel officer 
other than the Borough Administrator; and  
 

10. Execute other powers and duties specified in AS Title 29 or lawfully prescribed 
by the Assembly. 

 
(Ord. 18-02 (Amended Ord. 14-04), Sec. 2.16.010, part, 1987) 

 
 
INTRODUCED: _______________ 
 
ADOPTED:  _______________ 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Alvin D. Osterback, Mayor 
  
 Date:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
CLERK 
 
Date:  _______________________ 
 



 

 

Resolutions 

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text



1 | P a g e  
 

 

 
 

Agenda Statement 
 
Date:   September 2, 2021 
 
To:  Mayor Osterback and Assembly 
 
From:  Anne Bailey, Borough Administrator 
 
Re: Resolution 22-14, Authorizing the Mayor to Negotiate and Execute a Contract with 
DOWL to conduct construction administration/oversight and completion inspection/travel 
for the Cold Bay Terminal Expansion Project in an amount not to exceed $86,655  
 
Borough Administration has been directed to expand the Cold Bay Terminal Facility to 
accommodate additional space for social distancing due to the COVID-19 emergency. DOWL has 
been contracted to perform a Feasibility Study, 10% Conceptual Design, and 35% Design and 
Construction Manager-General Contractor (GMGC) Contractor Solicitation and Selection; 65% 
Design and Guaranteed Maximum Price, 100% (Final) Design and to assist with contract 
negotiations. The Feasibility Study, the 35% design and solicitation for a contractor have been 
completed. DOWL is in the process of completing the 65% and 100%.  
 
DOWL has now issued their proposal to conduct contract administration/oversight and completion 
inspection/travel in an amount not to exceed $86,655. This includes a lump sum fee in the amount 
of $62,128 for contract administration and a time and materials amount of $24,527 for inspections 
and travel. If the Assembly approves the Borough would enter into a contract with DOWL for the 
work.  
 
To pay for DOWL’s services, funds in account E 20-500-209-603 Terminal Maintenance and 
fund E 20-866-209-888 project contingency will be used.   
 



 1 

 
 

Resolution 22-14 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE A 
CONTRACT WITH DOWL TO CONDUCT CONSTRUCTION 
ADMINISTRATION/OVERSIGHT AND COMPLETION INSPECTION/TRAVEL FOR 
THE COLD BAY TERMINAL EXPANSION PROJECT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $86,655  
 
WHEREAS, the Borough has been directed to expand the Cold Bay Terminal Facility to 
accommodate additional space for social distancing due to the COVID-19 emergency; and  
 
WHEREAS, DOWL has been contracted to perform a Feasibility Study, 10% Conceptual Design, 
and 35% Design, Construction Manager-General Contractor (GMGC) Contractor Solicitation and 
Selection, 65% design and guaranteed maximum price, 100% (final) design and construction 
negotiations; and  
 
WHEREAS, DOWL has submitted a scope of services and fee proposal to conduct construction 
administration/oversight and completion inspection/travel in an amount not to exceed $86,655; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, if approved the Borough would enter into a contract with DOWL for these services; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, funds in account E 20-500-209-604 MAINTENANCE and E 20-866-209-888 
PROJECT CONTINGENCY will be used to pay for this work. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVE, the Aleutians East Borough Assembly authorizes the 
Borough Mayor to Negotiate and Execute a Contract with DOWL to conduct construction 
administration/oversight and completion inspection/travel for the Cold Bay Terminal Expansion 
in an amount not to exceed $86,655.  
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the Aleutians East Borough on this day 9th day of September 
2021.  
 



 2 

__________________________ 
Alvin D. Osterback, Mayor 
 
         
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Tina Anderson, Borough Clerk 

 
 



 

907-562-2000 ■ 800-865-9847 (fax) ■ 4041 B Street ■ Anchorage, Alaska 99503 ■ www.dowl.com 
 

September 1, 2021 
 
Ms. Anne Bailey 
Aleutians East Borough (AEB) 
3380 C Street, Suite 205 
Anchorage, AK 99503 
 
Subject: Cold Bay Airport Terminal Addition 
 Construction Administration and Completion Inspections 
 

 
Dear Ms. Bailey: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity for DOWL to continue to help complete this terminal addition 
project for the AEB. Prior authorizations for this project include: 
 

 Phase 1 - Feasibility Study & 10% Concept Design 

 Phase 2 - 35% Design 

 Phase 3 - CM-GC Solicitation and Selection 

 Phase 4 - Construction Contract Assistance 

 Phase 5 - 65% Design & Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Development 

 Phase 6 - 100% Design 

 Phase 7 - Contractor Negotiations 

 Phase 8 - Permitting Assistance  
 
This proposal includes the services for the following phases. 
 

 Phase 9 – Construction Administration/Oversight 

 Phase 10 – Completion Inspection/Travel 
 
This letter details our scope of services, schedule, assumptions, and budget for the two 
remaining project phases. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Phase 9 – Construction Administration/Oversight (lump sum) 
Following execution of the construction contract and the establishment of the final GMP, DOWL 
will assist with construction oversight. We will provide construction administration services and 
work with the construction Contractor to determine whether construction is proceeding in 
accordance with the approved plans. Our services for this phase will include the activities listed 
below: 

 Manage the contractor submittal process.  

 Continued hosting project coordination meetings as needed.  

 Oversee and manage request for information (RFI) process. 

 Review and manage construction scope change (requests for change order proposal, 
and development and execution of change orders). 

 Review and recommend payment for contractor submitted pay applications. 

 Coordinate Substantial (or Final) Completion Inspections. 



Ms. Anne Bailey 
Aleutians East Borough 
September 1, 2021 
Page 2 of 3 

 Develop final punchlist. 

 Review contractor generated as-builts. 
 
Phase 10 – Completion Inspections/Travel (time and materials) 
Phase 10 is a time and materials phase established for designers to conduct site visit near 
substantial/final completion. The included budget allows for one trip by each of the following 
designers: 

 Architect 

 Structural Engineer 

 Mechanical Engineer 

 Electrical Engineer 
 
ASSUMPTIONS 
The following assumptions were used to develop this scope of services and fee proposal: 

 16-week duration for on-site construction activities. 

 DOWL will not attend the Substantial Completion inspection.  

 This proposal does not include any costs for required special inspections. As the design 
is finalized and as Golder provides input for geotechnical requirements, DOWL will work 
with designers to propose a special inspection budget.  
 

DELIVERABLES 
The following deliverables will be prepared and submitted to the AEB on an as needed basis. 

 Phase 9 
o Material testing reports 
o Change orders 
o Pay request recommendations 
o Request for information responses and design clarifications 
o Punchlist 

 Phase 10 
o Completion reports 

 
SCHEDULE 
DOWL understands that this project must be complete by December 31, 2021 to maximize 
CARES Act funding. Once the construction contractor begins work on the project, DOWL will 

 work with them to determine a detailed construction schedule. 



Ms. Anne Bailey 
Aleutians East Borough 
September 1, 2021 
Page 3 of 3 

 
  
FEES 
DOWL proposes to complete the services described in this letter for the costs listed below. A 
more detailed summary is included as an attachment.  
  

Phase Fee Basis Cost 

Phase 9 - Construction Administration Lump Sum $62,128 

Phase 10 – Completion Inspections/Travel Time and Materials $24,527 

  Total $86,655 

 
Thank you again for the opportunity to propose on this work. Please contact me at  
907-562-2000 or evoorhees@dowl.com with any questions or comments. 
 
Regards, 
DOWL 
 

 
Eric Voorhees, PE 
Project Manager 
 
 
Unless noted here otherwise, by signing below this proposal is accepted, and DOWL is 
authorized to proceed with the work described in this letter. 
 
 
__________________________________________ _________________________ 
Anne Bailey       Date 
Aleutians East Borough 
  
Attachment(s): As stated 
 

mailto:evoorhees@dowl.com


1 | P a g e  
 

 

 
 

Agenda Statement 
 
Date:   September 3, 2021 
 
To:  Mayor Osterback and Assembly 
 
From:  Anne Bailey, Borough Administrator 
 
Re: Resolution 22-15, Authorizing the appropriation of $250,000 in Borough Alaska 
Municipal League Investment Pool funds to the Cold Bay Terminal Expansion project 
 
Borough Administration has been directed to expand the Cold Bay Terminal Facility to 
accommodate additional space for social distancing due to the COVID-19 emergency. At the 
August 12, 2021 Assembly meeting, the Assembly authorized the Mayor to Negotiate and Execute 
a Contract with F&W Construction Company, Inc to complete the Cold Bay Terminal Expansion 
project in an amount not to exceed $1,000,000, and appropriating $200,000 in Borough Alaska 
Municipal League Investment Pool funds to the project. At that time, F&W Construction Company 
had not submitted their cost estimate for the project and Administration had anticipated the cost to 
be approximately $1,000,000.  
 
On September 1, 2021, Administration received the final cost estimate totaling $1,261,778 to 
complete the project. Due to timing and the need to meet barge schedules and complete the work 
by the December 31, 2021 deadline, Administration and the Mayor determined it to be in the 
Borough’s best interest to sign the contract. Resolution 22-15 is now before the Assembly 
requesting that additional funds from the AMLIP account be appropriated to complete this work.  
 
The Borough has approximately $854,000 in CARES Act funds to pay for a portion of the work 
and the Assembly has already appropriated $200,000 in Alaska Municipal League Investment 
Pool (AMLIP), totaling $1,054,000. Therefore, Administration is requesting an additional 
$250,000 in AMLIP funds be appropriated to complete the project and have a little extra for 
unanticipated needs. Any funds that are not used would be appropriated back to the AMLIP 
portfolio.  
 
Recommendation 
Administration recommends approval of Resolution 22-15, Authorizing the appropriation of 
$250,000 in Borough Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool funds to the Cold Bay Terminal 
Expansion project. 



Prepared By:

FJC

Reviewed By:

Summary EMV

A Project management, scheduling, coordination, etc. 24 3,730.00$   -$          -$                   3,730.00$         

B Submittal processing 12 1,800.00$   -$          -$                   1,800.00$         

C Construction meetings 54 8,100.00$   -$          -$                   8,100.00$         

D RFIs, change orders 14 2,060.00$   -$          42,597.50$         44,657.50$       

E Pay application recommendations 12 1,800.00$   -$          -$                   1,800.00$         

F Final punchlist - -$            -$          -$                   -$                 

G Review as-builts & develop record drawings 4 560.00$      -$                   560.00$            

H Quality control 9 1,480.00$   -$          -$                   1,480.00$         

129 19,530.00$ -$          42,597.50$         62,127.50$       

A Substantial completion inspection - -$            -$          24,526.70$         24,526.70$       

B Completion inspection travel time - -$            -$          -$                   -$                 

- -$            -$          24,526.70$         24,526.70$       

129 19,530.00$ -$          67,124.20$         86,654.20$       

 Cold Bay Airport Terminal Addition

 Aleutian's East Borough

DOWL Project #: 63313.01

9/1/2021

Labor Subtotal
TaskPhase Name

Phase 9 - 

Construction 

Administration

Phase 10 - 

Completion 

Inspections/Travel

Project

Totals

Direct

Expenses 

SubtotalCostHours

Subtotal

Subtotal

Subconsultants

TOTAL

T&M Lump Sum Other ______________________

T&M Lump Sum Other _________________________

\\dowl.com\j\Projects\44\63313-01\10PM\1.0DOWL\13Fees-SOW\4 - Construction Admin\AEB 2021 Cold Bay Terminal Addition  -- Construction Administration.xlsx Summary



 1 

 
 

Resolution 22-15 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATION OF $250,000 IN BOROUGH 
ALASKA MUNICIPAL LEAGUE INVESTMENT POOL FUNDS TO THE COLD BAY 
TERMINAL EXPANSION PROJECT 
 
WHEREAS, the Borough has been directed to expand the Cold Bay Terminal Facility to 
accommodate additional space for social distancing due to the COVID-19 emergency; and  
 
WHEREAS, at the August 12, 2021 Assembly Meeting, the Assembly authorized the Mayor to 
Negotiate and Execute a Contract with F&W Construction Company, Inc to complete the Cold 
Bay Terminal Expansion project in an amount not to exceed $1,000,000, and appropriating 
$200,000 in Borough Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool funds to the project; and  
 
WHEREAS, at that time, F&W Construction Company, had not submitted their cost estimate for 
the project and Administration had anticipated the cost to be approximately $1,000,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, On September 1, 2021, Administration received the final cost estimate totaling 
$1,261,778 to complete the project; and  
 
WHEREAS, due to timing and the need to meet barge schedules and complete the work by the 
December 31, 2021 deadline, Administration and the Mayor determined it to be in the Borough’s 
best interest to sign the contract in the amount of $1,261,778; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Borough has approximately $854,000 in Borough CARES Act funds to pay for 
a portion of this and the Assembly has appropriated $200,000 in Alaska Municipal League 
Investment Pool (AMLIP) funds for the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, Administration is requesting the Assembly to appropriate an additional $250,000 in 
AMLIP to complete the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, any funds that are not used, would be appropriated back to the AMLIP portfolio. 
 



 2 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Aleutians East Borough Assembly authorizes 
the appropriation of $250,000 from the Borough’s Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool to 
the Cold Bay Terminal Expansion Project.  
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the Aleutians East Borough on this day September 9, 2021.  
 
  

 
__________________________ 
Alvin D. Osterback, Mayor 
 
         
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Tina Anderson, Borough Clerk 

 
 



 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

tanderson
Typewritten Text
NONE



New Business 

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text



1 | P a g e  
September 2, 2021 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:   Mayor Osterback and Assembly 
 
From:   Anne Bailey, Borough Administrator 
 
Date:   September 2, 2021 
 
Re: Quarter 2 – Aleutians East Borough Strategic Plan Update 
 
 
The Aleutians East Borough (Borough) conducted a Planning Work Session on December 10, 
2020, to help identify projects and initiatives that would be included on the Borough’s Strategic 
Plan. Assembly members and staff were in attendance and actively engaged in conversations 
about the Borough’s role in community projects. 
 
Mayor Osterback, staff, and PGS consultants defined which projects would be part of the 
Borough’s strategic plan for one year beginning March 1, 2021 and ending February 28, 2022 
based on the information shared to the Assembly during the work session. Many of the projects 
identified on the plan are currently being pursued or actively being completed. The plan also 
defines project leads, quarterly project outcomes, and year-end targets. This will ensure 
accountability and transparency through the next year of project activities. The Assembly 
approved Resolution 21-33 at the February 11, 2021 Assembly meeting, which approved the 
projects and initiatives identified on the Borough Strategic Plan.  
 
An overview of the work accomplished during the second quarter of the strategic plan is shown 
on the attached report. A few items have changed since the strategic plan was approved:  
 
 

 Fisheries Research 
o Background Information Collected & Organized has been partially completed and 

moved from Q2 to Q3. 
o Moved Community & Assembly Feedback Gathered from Q2 to Q3.   

 
 Fisheries Research 2021 

o Potentially list of projects/proposals/issues created has been partially completed 
and moved from Q2 to Q3.  

 
 False Pass Airport 2021 



2 | P a g e  
September 2, 2021 

o Moved False Pass Airport response plan created from Q2 to Q3.  
o Moved False Pass Airport response plan initiated from Q3 to Q4 

 
 Marine Infrastructure 

 
1. Cold Bay Dock Repairs 

o Changed the title of Reconnaissance study outcome targets identified to 
Reconnaissance/Feasibility outcome targets identified. This has been 
completed.  

o Document completed and work to dated consolidated has been partially 
completed and moved from Q2 to Q3.  
 

2. Akutan Harbor 
o Primary Property Owner Determined has been moved from Q2 to Q3.    
o Property transfer plan developed has been moved from Q3 to Q4.  

 
3. Harbor Floats Systems Sand Point/Akutan 2021 

o This project has been completed.  
o Changed the language on 3.3.3 from Funding Appropriated to Funding 

Determined.  
 

 Diversification of Natural Resources 
o Resources assessment proposal created was moved from Q2 to Q3.  
o Removed gear acquisition plan executed and kelp farm operation constructed 

from the plan.  
 

 Cold Bay Clinic 
o Moved In-Kind contributions determined, projects site determined, and 

project plan completed from Q2 to Q3.  
o MOA updated and building permit application submitted from Q3 to Q4.  
 

 Deferred Maintenance 
o Property condition assessment completed from Q2 to Q3.  

 
 Sand Point School 2021 

o Grant application updated and grant application submitted has been deleted 
and replaced with Reuse of scores submitted by the school district.  
 

 Borough Property Management 
 

1. Nelson Lagoon Apartment  
o Funding needs assessed, building assessment completed and funding 

appropriated has been moved from Q2 to Q3.  
o Disposal action plan created and disposal action plan initiated has been moved 

from Q3 to Q4.  
 



3 | P a g e  
September 2, 2021 

2. Cold Bay School 
o Entire tract will need to be revisited. 

 
3. Cold Bay Terminal 

o Design completed has been moved from Q2 to Q3.  
 

 Deferred Maintenance 
o Property condition assessment completed has been moved from Q1 to Q2. 

 
 HR Tools (Employee Handbook) 2021 

o Employee presentation to staff completed was added to Q2 and the Employee 
handbook training completed was deleted from Q3. The presentation to staff 
was completed on September 2, 2021.   

o Rough draft employee handbook presented to assembly and employee 
handbook approved by the assembly were moved from Q2 to Q3.  

o Employee handbook update completed was moved from Q3 to Q4.  
 

 Borough Property Maintenance Policy & Procedure 
o Borough school maintenance process assessed has been moved from Q2 to Q3.  
o Partnership agreements written has been moved from Q3 to Q4.  

 
 PR & Marketing 2021 

o AEB website designer has been moved from Q2 to Q3.  
 

 Community & Agency Alignment 2021 
o Key meeting schedule created, AEB attendance plan established and plan to 

highlight community leaders, etc., established has been moved from Q2 to Q3.   
o Alignment opportunities identified and Plan to highlight community leaders 

initiated has been moved from Q3 to Q4.  
 
An updated strategic plan vision navigation chart reflecting the outcomes for quarter two is 
attached for your reference.  
 









REPORTS AND UPDATES 



1 | P a g e  
 

 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor Osterback and AEB Assembly 
From:  Anne Bailey, Borough Administrator 
Subject: Assembly Report  
Date:  September 3, 2021 
 
CARES Act Funding Update 
 
Summary of Funding 
The Aleutians East Borough has received the $3,723,853.74 in CARES Act funds from the State 
of Alaska. As of August 31, 2021, the Borough has expended $2,838,094.78 in CARES Act 
funds, which leaves a balance of $885,758.96 to be spent. An overview of CARES Act funds 
expenditures through August 31, 2021 can be found below:  
 

Borough CARES Act Funding Program Allocations 
 

Borough CARES Act Expenditures  Funding Appropriated Funding Spent Funding Remaining  
 
EAES Program    $467,964.46  ($467,964.46) $0.00 
 
Non-Profit & Civic Organization Program $100,000.00  ($100,000.00) $0.00 
 
Cold Bay Community Center Conversion $400,000.00  ($400.000.00) $0.00 
 
PPE and Cleaning Supplies  $25,000.00  ($23,566.74) $1,433.26 
 
Payroll     $192,632.45  ($192,632.45) $0.00 
 
Legal Fees    $90,000.00  ($80,844.37) $9.155.63 
 
Telephone    $2,748.15  ($2,748.15) $0.00 
 
AML     $2,500.00  ($2,500.00) $0.00 
 
KSDP     $70,237.31  ($70,237.31) $0.00 
 
Election     $3,242.70  ($3,242.70) $0.00 
 
Southwest Governments   $3,029.10  ($3,029.10) $0.00 
 
Air Purification Systems – SP and KC  $82,489.00  ($82,489.00) $0.00 
 
Postponement or Revision of Projects $350,204.50  ($329,493.03) $20,711.47 
 
EAT     $152,894.14  ($152,894.14) $0.00 
 
Food Distribution Program  $900,347.32  ($900,347.32) $0.00 
 
Telework Reimbursement Program  $9,048.97  ($8,798.97) $250.00 



2 | P a g e  
 

 
Air Purification – FP and Akutan  $14,189.35  ($14,189.35) $0.00 
 
Cold Bay Benches   $3,117.68  ($3,117.68) $0.00 
 
Cold Bay Terminal   $854,208.60  ($0.00)  $854,208.60 
 
TOTAL     $3,723,853.74  ($2,838.094.78) $885,758.96 
 
Appropriated to complete existing appropriations  $885,758.96 
 
COVID-19 Updates 
 

 On August 24, 2021, the Borough hosted a meeting with EAT, the school district and the 
communities to discuss COVID-19 and what was occurring in the region.  

 On August 27, 2021, Administration applied for the ARPA/SALT funds. The Borough 
anticipates receiving $648,173 in ARPA funds over the next two years. The application 
was approved by US Treasury on September 3, 2021 and have processed a payment to 
the Borough in the amount of $324,086.50.  

 Administration is attending State of Alaska ECHO meetings regarding COVID-19.  
 
Cold Bay Terminal 

 
 Terminal Expansion: 

o On April 14, 2021, Administration authorized DOWL to complete the 35% design 
and on April 20, 2021, the Borough authorized DOWL to conduct the CM-GC 
Contractor Solicitation and Selection.  

o On May 6, 2021, Administration authorized DOWL to assist with the construction 
contract. 

o The schedule to complete the project is really aggressive. The plan is to solicit a 
contractor the week of May 10, 2021 and reach substantial completion by 
December 2021. This is contingent on being able to hire a contractor to complete 
the work.  

o On April 28, 2021, Anne, DOWL and ECI conducted a site visit of the Cold Bay 
Terminal. Will be meeting with DOWL/ECI on May 10, 2021 to discuss next 
steps.  

o The Construction Manager/General Contractor Request for Proposal Solicitation 
was issued on May 17, 2021.  

o On May 20, 2021, Administration authorized DOWL to assist with permitting 
assistance for the Terminal. DOWL’s work includes work on the building permit, 
the FAA form and preparing the Construction Safety Phasing Plan.  

o On May 28, 2021, Administration authorized DOWL to complete the 65% 
Design, 100% Design and Construction Negotiations.  

o On June 7, 2021, the Borough received 4 proposals from contractors for the 
Construction Manager/General Contractor work. The selection committee met on 
June 11, 2021 and selected F&W for preconstruction services. F&W submitted 
the most responsive proposal and had a fee of $7,700 for pre-construction 



3 | P a g e  
 

services. DOWL is finalizing the contract for pre-construction services, which 
Administration hopes to review and sign next week.  

o The Fire Marshal Permit has been submitted to the State. The Borough paid the 
permit fee on July 15, 2021. The State Building Permit has also been submitted.  

o The F&W Preconstruction Services Contract was fully executed on July 21, 2021.  
o DOWL, F&W and Borough staff are meeting weekly to discuss the project. The 

65% design should be completed soon.  
o On August 16, 2021, the Borough received the State Fire Marshal Permit. The 

sprinkler and alarm plans are deferred for 90 days.  
o On August 20, 2021, Administration issued a Limited Notice to Proceed to F&W 

in an amount not to exceed $80,000 for Early Procurement and Mobilization.  
o Administration hired Golder to do geotechnical work in an amount not to exceed 

$8,000.00.  
o On September 1, 2021, Administration received the final cost estimate totaling 

$1,261,778 to complete the project. Due to timing and the need to purchase 
materials, meet barge schedules and complete the work by the December 31, 2021 
deadline, Administration and the Mayor have determined it to be in the Borough’s 
best interest to sign the contract.  
 

Cold Bay Dock 
In February 2020, damage to the Cold Bay Dock occurred and an insurance claim was submitted 
to AMLJIA. Moffatt & Nichol was hired to conduct a damage assessment and was finally able to 
conduct a visual inspection in July 2021. The following work was identified to restore the dock 
to pre-damaged conditions: 
 

 Remove the two remaining pile stubs and replace them with new treated timber fender 
piles.  

 Replace the safety ladder and provide high visibility signs in the interim to alleviate 
pedestrian safety concerns.  

 Replace the damaged decking.  
 Remove and replace the existing bull rail and connection hardware to facilitate proposed 

repairs.  
 Galvanize all new steel items and treat any new or existing damaged timber elements.  
 In the case the embedded portion of the severed fender piles are unable to be removed or 

are broken during demolition, the new timber fender pile and steel safety ladder will need 
to be relocated. The piles were connected to the existing 12x12 stringers, which are 
spaced 2 feet on-center. It is recommended the new elements be installed on the next 
available set of adjacent stringers to the East. Moving the piles and safety ladder to the 
next available stringer to the West does not appear to be possible due to existing utility 
conflicts on the deck. Relocating the new piles and ladder will require the removal of 
existing decking and bull rail as needed. 

 
In August 2021, the Borough was made aware that West Marine Construction was conducting 
work in the region and the Borough contacted them, received a proposal and hired them to 
conduct the work for an amount of $286,785. AMLJIA has been made aware of this, agreed that 
this would be the most efficient and cost effective method for all parties involved and is in 



4 | P a g e  
 

discussions with the reinsurers to cover the claim.  
 
West Marine arrived in Cold Bay on September 3, 2021 and should have the work completed in 
two days.  
 
King Cove Road Update 

 9th Circuit Appeal: Oral argument on our Land Exchange case occurred virtually on 
August 4, 2021. The Federal, State and King Cove Group attorneys presented their 
approach for the 20 minutes allotted for the argument. The case has now been submitted 
to the three-judge panel, but a decision is not expected for a number of months.  

 Special Use Permit: The State successfully performed field work on the King Cove 
owned land within the refuge. The remaining land on which the State wants to perform 
field work is still under permit review by US Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). The 
State has received draft permits but these have not yet been finalized The State has 
contracts in place and is gearing up for this work to be performed once the SUP is issued. 
Timing on the beginning of field work is still being negotiated between the Sate DOT/PF 
and the US Fish and Wildlife Service. 
 

 The virtual meeting on Aug. 16  with  Interior Secretary Deb Haaland went well with all 
of our key team participating, Mayor Osterback, Mayor Mack, Della Trumble, Etta 
Kuzakin, and Lynne Mack gave strong presentations just as we hoped they would. 
Secretary Haaland listened very attentively and thanked all for their participation but did 
not provide any details as to her opinion. 
 

 The King Cove Tribes, King Cove Corporation, Aleutians East Borough and City of King 
Cove are working with the Alaska Congressional Delegation on the one-day visit to King 
Cove by Secretary Haaland. This visit has now been scheduled for September 17 when 
she visits Alaska to tour various sites and obtain more information on issues including the 
King Cove access needs.  Because of other issues, this may be the only place that 
Secretary Haaland visits in AK  other than Anchorage but that remains to be seen.  
 

Nelson Lagoon Dock Repairs Project 
Heko Services arrived in Nelson Lagoon during the week of August 16, 2021. The sleeve repair 
was completed on August 24, 2021 and the crew has departed Nelson Lagoon. The project is 
now considered complete!  
 
Akun Dock and Breakwater 
On August 31, 2021, the Mayor and Administration participated in a 4 hour meeting with the 
Army Corps to begin the planning process for the Akun Dock and Breakwater. The Army Corps 
and Borough scheduled a trip to Akutan on September 14-15, 2021; however, due to COVID-19 
we will be rescheduling in either late September or in October.  
 
Power Cost Equalization Lawsuit 
The Borough decided to participate in litigation in relation to Power Cost Equalization (PCE). 
Holmes Weddle & Barcott represented the Borough, the Alaska Federation of Natives, the City 



5 | P a g e  
 

of Saint Paul, City and Borough of Yakutat, City of Sand Point, City of Adak, the Curyung 
Tribal Council, City of Bethel, Maniilaq Association, and the Kake Tribal Council in connection 
with litigation relating to the Governor’s decision to sweep the PCE Endowment Fund into the 
Constitutional Budget reserve, which immediately disrupted PCE’s function. The Borough has 
contributed $10,000 to this effort. The attorney’s submitted the filing on July 19, 2021; the State 
replied in support of motion for expedited consideration on July 20, 2021 and the court provided 
a notice and order regarding expedited consideration on July 22, 2021. The briefs shall be filed 
as followed: 1) Governor’s Opposition and Cross-Motion for Summary Judgement by noon on 
July 27, 2021 2) Plaintiff’s Reply in support of Motion for Summary Judgement and Opposition 
to Cross-Motion for summary Judgement on July 30th 3) Governor’s Reply in support of Cross-
Motion for Summary Judgement by August 3, 2021 and 4) Oral Argument is scheduled for 
August 5, 2021 from 2:00 – 2:45 p.m. On July 27, 2021, the Court issued a Notice Rescheduling 
Oral Argument occurred on August 5, 2021. On August 11, 2021, the judge issued an order on 
Motion for Summary Judgement and Cross-Motion for Summary Judgment stating that we won.  

Strategic Planning 
The Borough has contracted Professional Growth Systems (PGS) for the 2022-2023 planning 
cycle. Through this process PGS and Administration would like to conduct public meetings in 
the communities. We are tentatively scheduling these meetings the week of October 25th for the 
communities of Cold Bay, False Pass, King Cove, Nelson Lagoon and Sand Point. A visit to 
Akutan will be scheduled at a later date.  
  
Other Items 

 On August 17, 2021, I participated in an interview with McKinley Research Group for a 
SWAMC grant regarding COVID-19 and its impacts on the Southwest Region.  

 Reviewed Website Requests for Proposal on August 18, 2021.  
 On August 24, 2021, Mayor Osterback signed a letter supporting the Native Village of 

Port Lion’s application for a Tribal Broadband Connectivity Program. This grant 
application includes adding Cold Bay, False Pass and the other communities along the 
AU Aleutians route back into the scope of work connecting them to the main fiber line 
and to building giber to the homes and businesses. We were informed that this grant was 
submitted on September 1, 2021.  

 I have also been continuously conducting day to day operations.  
 

If you have any questions, comments, or concerns please contact me at (907) 317-1498 or 
abailey@aeboro.org.    
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Nelson Lagoon Dock Repair Photos provided by Heko Services, Inc. 

mailto:abailey@aeboro.org


   

1 
 

To:  The Honorable Mayor Osterback, AEB Assembly  
From:   Mary Tesche, Assistant Administrator 
Subject: Assembly Report 
Date:  August 6, 2021 
 
 
Strategic Plan Update 
 
Sand Point DEED Grant – On the recommendation of our contact at SERRC, we determined that 
the best solution for the DEED grant was to resubmit our scores from last year because we 
scored well. We originally planned to update the grant application; however, the advice was that 
we would run the risk of losing points because some of the requirements have changed. 
Superintendent Patrick Mayer submitted the Reuse of Scores letter to the State on August 27th. 
This change has been reflected on the strategic plan and this item is complete for this year. 
 
Akutan Harbor – Item 3.2.1 on the strategic plan is to identify the different property owners for 
the parcels on Tract 5, Lot 2 at the Akutan Harbor. I received info from the State on this tract and 
have sent a memo outlining parcel ownership to Anne for review. This item on the plan is 
completed. Next step will be to determine who the primary property owner will be for the parcels 
and continuing with the ownership transfer if necessary. 
 
Employee Handbook – Item 6.1.1 on the strategic plan is to present the draft of the updated 
employee handbook to our staff. The staff presentation took place on September 2nd in 
anticipation of the September assembly meeting. Item 6.1.2 will be completed following the 
presentation of the updated handbook to the Assembly at the September meeting.  
 
Other Items & Announcements 
 
This is my last report to the Assembly so I want to thank you all for your leadership and for 
giving me the opportunity to be part of this amazing team. It has been a pleasure to work with 
you for the last four years. We’ve been able to accomplish some truly remarkable things and I 
appreciate the trust you’ve put in me in this position. I know the Borough is in great hands and I 
wish you all the best of luck.   
 
 



www.aleutianseast.org www.facebook.com/AleutiansEastBorough/ ltanis@aeboro.org (907) 274-7579  

 
 

To: Honorable Mayor Alvin Osterback and Aleutians East Borough Assembly 
From: Laura Tanis, AEB Communications Director 
Through: Anne Bailey, AEB Administrator 
Subject: Communications Director’s Report to the Assembly 
Date: September 3, 2021 
 

 

 
Annual report 
The latest version of the annual report has been approved after numerous 
updates were made. As of the writing of this report, I just need to include some 
fishing and/or scenic photos to go on the last page. Next it will go to the printer. 
After that, copies will be mailed out to the communities.  
 
Website Design: 
The scoring committee met last month to discuss the various criteria for 
selecting a website designer. After scoring, one stood out. As of the writing of 
this report, we’re in the process of negotiations on a couple of price points. 
Following those discussions, we will complete a contract for the designer to 
sign. 
 
House Finance Committee 
On behalf of the Borough, I provided additional testimony at the Anchorage Legislative Information Office 
regarding the state budget fiscal plan during the last week of August. The Alaska House Finance Committee 
presided over this hearing. The testimony focused on urging the legislature to consider taking a balanced 
approach with the budget and to avoid cost-shifting to local government. We 
also requested that the state fully fund school bond debt reimbursement, the 
harbor bond debt reimbursement and school construction or major maintenance. 
 
Fish News: 
The last Fish News went out on August 30th. It focused on the Alaska Board of 
Fisheries and the meetings scheduled for October 20th through the 21st at 
Anchorage’s Egan Center for their annual work session. I’ll defer to Ernie for 
the details on this. I also included an update on the Western Gulf of Alaska 
Pacific Cod tagging study by the Alaska Fisheries Science Center and the 
Aleutians East Borough. Charlotte provided this information, which also went 
into In the Loop. 

http://www.aleutianseast.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AleutiansEastBorough/
mailto:ltanis@aeboro.org


www.aleutianseast.org www.facebook.com/AleutiansEastBorough/ ltanis@aeboro.org (907) 274-7579  

 
In the Loop: 
The last In the Loop went out on August 25th, which contained 
information about a job opening for the Borough Clerk. On 
August 23rd, we sent out a Notice of Offices to be Filled for the 
regular election to be held by the Borough on October 5th. The 
deadline to file a Declaration of Candidacy was September 3rd.  
Also included was information about SWAMC’s Recovery and 
Resiliency Survey. The survey asks how COVID impacted  
family income and well-being, as well as what helped the most. 
Those that participate will be entered to win a $50 Visa gift card. 
 
Miscellaneous items include: 

• Updates to our Facebook page, newsletters and website 
as needed; 

• Continuing work on the Borough’s Strategic Plan.  
• Ordered AEB pens for use during the Borough elections. 

 
 
 

Meetings Attended: 
 

9/3/21 AEB Staff Revised Personnel Manual 
9/1/21 State of AK Emergency Managers 

Meeting  - Covid 
8/30/21 AEB staff Website Design Meeting 
8/24/21 AEB staff Website Design Discussion 
8/24/21 AEB/Communities COVID-19 Meeting 
8/24/21 Anchorage L.I.O. Provided testimony to 

House Finance Committee 
8/20/21 AEB staff Website Design meeting 
8/19/21 AEB staff Website Design scoring 

meeting 
8/18/21 State of AK Emergency Managers 

Meeting – Covid-19 
 
 
Those are the highlights. Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you.  
 

http://www.aleutianseast.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AleutiansEastBorough/
mailto:ltanis@aeboro.org


  www.aebfish.org   www.facebook.com/AEBfish  eweiss@aeboro.org   907-274-7557   9/3//2021            

To:  The Honorable Mayor Osterback, Aleutians East Borough Assembly  
From:  Ernie Weiss, Natural Resources Director  
Subj:  Report to the Assembly  
Date:  September 3, 2021 
 
 
Alaska Board of Fisheries 
 This week the Board published the 14 agenda change requests (ACRs) that will be 
considered at the Work Session October 20-21 at the Egan Center in Anchorage. Two of the ACRs, 
6 & 7 from Chignik residents, would further restrict salmon fishing in the Dolgoi area and the 
Shumagin Islands section of the South Alaska Peninsula. On-time public comments for the Work 
Session are due October 6th. The Board generally does not take oral testimony at the Work Session, 
but they have made exceptions and it is up to the call of the Board Chair. If an ACR is accepted 
by the Board, it would be scheduled for consideration at a future meeting, at the end of the Work 
Session during Miscellaneous Business.  Working with local fishermen to address these 
extraneous attacks on our fisheries is currently our number one priority.   
Board of Fisheries link. 
 
North Pacific Fishery Management Council 

While the October meeting of the Council was planned to be in person, the Council has 
changed course and will continue meeting virtually through at least the end of 2021, due to the 
rising Covid-19 numbers. The AEB Assembly Resolution 22-10 adopted at the August meeting, 
requesting a delay in final action on the BSAI Pcod CV Trawl program, was sent to the Council 
and will also be submitted during the public comment period beginning September 17. The Council 
will also review the Observer Program Annual Deployment Plan and proposed groundfish 
specifications for the GOA and BSAI at the October meeting. Link to NPFMC page. 
  
Alaska Redistricting Board 
 The Census Bureau released the formatted data for redistricting on August 12th. The 
Alaska Constitution requires that the Redistricting Board adopt a draft plan within 30 days and a 
final plan within 90 days of receipt of the data. The Board met August 23rd & 24th to review a 
full report on the AK census data from the AK Dept of Labor. The Board anticipates publishing 
one or more proposed plans no later than September 11, 2021, and third-party plans will be 
presented September 17th. The Board will adopt its final proclamation plan no later than 
November 10, 2021. The Assembly may want to consider endorsing one or more plans by 
resolution at the October meeting. Some relevant info: 

• 2010 Census Alaska population 710,231  
• 2020 Census Alaska population 733,391 
• 2010 Redistricting House District target population 17,755 
• 2020 Redistricting House District target population 18,335  
• 2010 Census AEB population 3141 
• 2020 Census AEB population 3420  

Most of our neighboring boroughs/census areas have lost population according to the 2020 
Census: Bristol Bay Borough, Lake and Pen Borough, Aleutians West, Kodiak Island.  
More info: www.akredistrict.org. 
 
 
 
 

http://www.aebfish.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AEBfish
mailto:eweiss@aeboro.org
http://www.adfg.alaska.gov/static-f/regulations/regprocess/fisheriesboard/pdfs/2021-2022/ws/acrs/acrs.pdf
http://www.adfg.alaska.gov/index.cfm?adfg=fisheriesboard.main
http://www.aebfish.org/aebres2210.pdf
http://www.npfmc.org/
http://www.akredistrict.org/


  www.aebfish.org   www.facebook.com/AEBfish  eweiss@aeboro.org   907-274-7557   9/3//2021            

 
Strategic Plan 
 Two of my tasks under the Fisheries Advocacy project scheduled for completion in 
August have been moved to the next quarter. 

• 1.1.3 background information collected and organized 
• 1.1.4 community and assembly feedback gathered 

I did help draft a memo to complete task 1.1.2 limited entry permit advocacy plan determined. 
 
Municipal Lands 
 I am beginning work on updating our Municipal Lands Report first drafted in 2014. 
 
Seafood Raffle 
 Please consider buying a $10. Seafood Raffle ticket to support our initiative to sponsor 
two young fishers from the region to attend the Alaska Young Fishermen’s Summit in 
Anchorage this December. Raffle drawing will be during the AEB Assembly meeting in 
November. I will be working with Laura to get the application process published this week in a 
Fish News. Thanks to all our local seafood processors and the QT Tribe for their help with this 
project. Special thanks to Glennora for her help on this. 

Please call if you have any questions or concerns. 

Recent meetings attended  
North Pacific Fishery Mangt Council, SSC & AP  Adobe Connect  June 1-16 
Alaska Board of Fish Emergency Petition meeting  webcast   Aug 2 
Alaska Fishing Communities     Zoom    Aug 13 
Redistricting Board Data Review/planning   Anch LIO/web  Aug 23-24 
 

Upcoming meetings    
Redistricting Board Map Drawing Work Sessions  Anch LIO/web  Sept 7-9 
Redistricting Board Adoption of Draft Plan    Anch LIO/web  Sept 10  
NPFMC Crab Plan Team     Adobe Connect  Sept 13-17 
Ecosystem Committee     Adobe Connect  Sept 15 
Redistricting Board Presentation of 3rd Party Plans   Anch LIO/web  Sept 17 
NPFMC Fishery Monitoring Advisory Committee  Adobe Connect  Sept 17 
NPFMC Groundfish Plan Teams    Adobe Connect  Sept 20-24 
North Pacific Fishery Mangt Council, SSC & AP  Adobe Connect  Sept30-Oct15 
Redistricting Board Adoption of Additional Draft Plans Anch LIO/web  Sept 21 
Alaska Board of Fish Work Session    Egan Center   Oct 20-21 
 

http://www.aebfish.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AEBfish
mailto:eweiss@aeboro.org
http://www.aebfish.org/draftmemo080921.pdf
http://www.aebfish.org/muni.lands.pdf
http://www.aebfish.org/raffle.pdf


To: Honorable Mayor Osterback, Aleutians East Borough Assembly
From: Charlotte Levy, Natural Resources Assistant Director
Re: Report to the Assembly
Date: September 9th, 2021

Electronic Monitoring - WGOA2/EFP:
● The project team has been preparing for the 610 pollock B season which started on September

1. I have been developing and giving presentations to the fleet and processors, and working
closely with everyone since the season started to catch issues early and prevent future issues.

● I have finished writing a human interest story on data modernization in the WGOA. EM4Fish
will publish it September 7, and will be made available on AEB/NRD media as well as included
in my October report.

● The project team submitted a pre-proposal application for the Saltonstall-Kennedy grant to put
EM in the plants to conduct salmon census - this is a no-match grant opportunity and will
provide a full proposal to the Assembly if invited to apply.

WGOA Data Portal:
● All participating members of the fleet have sign-in portal access and the portal is being updated

real-time as we receive eLandings reports.
● We have fully implemented eLog in the WGOA fleet, and have been working out kinks since

the season started. One major issue has been the timely input of fish tickets into eLandings,
which slows down our ability to track salmon. We are working closely with the processors to fix
this.

Mariculture:
● I am preparing to conduct the second research cruise to collect baseline data, that will conclude

the NFWF project. Once dates and logistics are decided, we will post the RFP for the charter. If
a charter happens, there will be strict Covid testing protocols and isolation in place.

AFSC Cod Tagging Project:
● We are working with AFSC to develop a dedicated website where fishermen can learn about the

project, and get up-to-date results of tagging efforts. Glennora has been a huge help in
distributing rewards!

● We have had new conventional tags reported caught in the northern Bering Sea.

Other - Salmon Research
● Ernie and I are working on a strategy to respond to recent ACR’s submitted, and compiling

background history on the fishery and WASSIP with guidance from the Mayor.
● While no AYK Chum ACR’s were published, I will still compile a brief document with the

research and WASSIP background I prepared that can be used in the future.

www.aebfish.org | www.facebook.com/AEBfish | clevy@aeboro.org | (907) 274-7566

http://www.aebfish.org
http://www.facebook.com/AEBfish


Assembly Comments 

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text



Public Comments 



Date & Location of Next 
Meeting 

tanderson
Typewritten Text



Adjournment 

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text


	Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting
	Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum
	Adoption of Agenda  
	September 8, 2021 Agenda 

	Presentation
	Employee Handbook (workshop only)

	Public Comment on Agenda Items 
	Conflict of Interest.
	Minutes 
	August 12, 2021 Assembly Meeting Minutes

	Financial Report 
	DRAFT June, 2021 Financial Report-discussion only.

	Investment Report
	July, 2021 Investment Report

	Consent Agenda 
	Resoluiton 22-11, appointing election judges for the October 5, 2021 Regular Election.
	Resolution 22-12, appointing a canvass committee for the October 5, 2021 Regular Election.
	Memo-Resoluiton 22-13, Assembly Approval of ASLS 2017-46
	Resolution 22-13
	ASLS No. 2017-46


	Ordinances
	Ordinance 22-03, amending Title 2, CH. 2.04 and 2.16, Sections 2.04.020, 2.04.060, 2.16.010 of the AEB Code.

	Resolutions
	Agenda Statement, Res. 22-14, authorizing the mayor to negotiate and execute a contract w/ DOWL to conduct construction administration/oversight and completion inspection/travel for Cold Bay Terminal Expansion, in an amount not to exceed $86,655.
	Resolution 22-14
	DOWL Proposal

	Agenda Statement Resolution 22-15, authorizing the appropriation of $250,000 in AEB AMLIP funds to Cold Bay Terminal Expansion project.
	Resolution 22-15


	Old Business None
	New Business 
	Memo - Quarter 2- AEB Strategic Plan Update
	Vision Navigation Chart


	Reports and Updates
	Administrator's Report 
	Assistant Administrator Report
	Communications Director Report
	Natural Resources Director Report 
	Natural Resources Assistant Director Report

	Assembly Comments
	Public Comments
	Next Meeting Date & Place 
	Adjournment 



